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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED 
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To 
The Governing Board, 
K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The "Investment Manager") 
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying um1udited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT ("the REIT") and its subsidiaries (the 
"Special Purpose Vehicles") (together referred as the "Mindspace Group"), which comprise the 
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2020, the unaudited 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, 
the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for quarter and nine months 
ended December 31, 2020, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in 
Unitholders' Equity for the nine months ended December 31, 2020 and the Statement of Net 
Distributable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of its special purpose vehicles for quarter ended 
December 31, 2020 as an additional disclosure in accordance with paragraph 6 of Annexure A 
to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 along with summary 
of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred 
as the "Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements"). These Condensed Consolidated 
Interim Financial Statements have been prepared by Management as per the requirements that 
would have been followed for half yearly reporting as per Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended, including any guidelines 
and circulars issued thereunder (the "SEBI REIT Regulations"). 

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 
Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager, have 
been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the 
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI 
REIT Regulations that would have been followed for ~,alf yearly reporting as per the SEBI REIT 
Regulations. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Condensed Consolidated Interim 
Financial Statements based on our review. 

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 
'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity', 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial 
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager's personnel 
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review 
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do 
not express an audit opinion. 

The Condensed Consolidated Interirr. Financial Statements include the financial information of 
the entities listed in Annexure A to this report. 
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4. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, 
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Condensed 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance with the 
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", 
as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not 
inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations that would have been followed for half yearly 
reporting as per the SEBI REIT Regulations or that it contains any material misstatement. 

5. We draw attention to Note 46 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 
regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties and 
Trading (India) Private Limited which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome of 
proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the Condensed 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter and nine months ended December 
31, 2020. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter . 

6. The Management has prepared these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in 
addition to the half yearly reporting that is required under SEBI REIT Regulations to be able to 
report net distributable cash flow for the quarter ended December 31, 2020. 

Mumbai, February 10, 2021 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Nilesh Shah 
Partner 

Membership No. 49660 
UDIN : 21049660AAAAAP9065 
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Annexure "A" 

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 

Special Purpose Vehicles: 

i. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
v. Sundew Properties Limited 
vi. Intime Properties Limited 
vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
viii. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
Investment property 
Investment property under construction 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 

- Investments 
- Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Non-current tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets 

Current RSsets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

- Trade receivables 
- Cash and cash equivalents 
- Other bank balances 
- Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 
Tohtl assets before regulatory deferrRI account 

Regulatory deferral account - assets 

Total RSSets 

Note 

5 

6 
7 
8 

9 
IO 
II 
12 
13 

14 

15 
16A 
16 B 
17 
18 

19 

As at 
31 December 2020 

(Unaudited) 

1,560 
22 

191 ,208 
18,666 

I 

18 
1,669 
1,709 
1,359 
I 046 

2J7,2!ill 

44 

242 
3,637 

210 
809 
627 

222,827 

164 

As at 
31 March 2020 

(Audited) 

0 

0 
n 



MlNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT /19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
(All amounts arc in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
Corpus 
Unit Capital 
Other equity 
Equity attributable to controlling interest of Mindspace REIT 

Non-controlling interest 

Total cq uity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings 
- Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-currenl liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings 
- Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors olher than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

- Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 
Total current liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account 

Regulatory deferral account - liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Note 

20 
21 
22 

54 

23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

28 
29 

30 
31 
32 

19 

As at 
31 December 2020 

(Unaudited) 

0 
162,839 

1,878 
164,717 

9,213 

173,930 

31,325 
2,474 

35 
166 
415 

34,415 

2,483 

57 

786 
10,338 

16 
934 

14,614 

222,959 

32 

222,991 

Significant accounting policies 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-56 
Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

As at 
31 March 2020 

(Audited) 

0 

(49) 
(49) 

(49) 

49 

49 

0 

0 

Firm's registration number: l 17366W/W-100018 (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Nilesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO Feb 2021 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO Feb 2021 

Vinod N. Rohira 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 

Prceti N. Chheda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Flm111cial Statements 
Consolidnted Stntement of Profit nnd Lo,s 
(All amounts arc in Rs. millio11 unless othen\'isc stoled) 

Income and gnins 
Revenue from operations 
Inte1est 
Olher income 
Total Income 

Expenses nnd losses 
Cost of work contract services 
Cost of materials sold 
Cost of power purchased 
Employee benefils expense 
Cosl of property manegement services 
T1 ustee fees 
Valuation fees 
Insurance expense 
Audit fees 
Mam,Hement fees 

Note 

33 
34 
35 

36 
37 
38 
39 

Repairs and maintenance 40 
Legal & professional fees 
Othe1 expenses 41 
Tot~I Expem1es 

Enrnlngs/(lo.!lll) before finance costs, depreciation nnd 
amortisnUon 1 regulatory income/ expense nnd tax 

Pinance costs 
Depreciation nnd amortisation expense 

Pronl/(lo,s) before rate regulated activities nnd tnx 

Add Regulalmy income/ (expense) (net) 

Add Regulatory income/(expcnse) (net) m respect of earlier years 

Profil/(los,) before lnx 

Curicnt lax 
Deferred tax charge 
MA I' c1cdit entitlement 
Tax expense 

Prollt/(Los,) for the period 

Profit for the period/year allribulable lo Mind,pnce REIT 

Pro Ill for the pcrlod/yenr attrlbutnble lo uon-conlrolllng 
Interests 

42 
43 

44 
44 
44 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 December 2020 
(Unnudited) 

4,301 
14 

I 

•J,3I6 

137 

137 
51 
79 

I 
0 

19 
6 

122 
I 15 
30 

297 
994 

3,323 

599 
811 

1,912 

21 

(13) 

1,920 

456 
221 
ISTJ 
S20 

1,400 

1,306 

94 

For the quarter For the nine 
ended months ended 

30 Sep tern her 2020 31 Decem her 2020 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

2,739 7,040 
37 51 
~ j 

l ,780 7,096 

68 205 
2 2 

59 196 
8 59 

79 
I 2 
6 6 

17 36 
6 13 

68 190 
180 295 
69 102 

244 542 
728 1,727 

2,052 5,369 

501 1,100 
496 1,307 

1,055 Z,962 

(6) 15 

(7) (20) 

1,042 2,957 

268 724 
158 379 
(68 225 
JSR 878 

684 2,079 

626 1,927 

58 I 52 

From 
18 November 2019 

lo 
31 December 2019 

(Unaudited)• 

12 
20 
32 

(32) 

(32) 

(32) 

(32) 

(32) 

From 
18 November 2019 

lo 
31 Mnrch 2020 

(Audited)• 

25 
23 
49 

(49) 

(49) 

(49) 

(49) 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolldnted Financial Stntements 
Consolidnted Statement of Pront nnd Loss 
(All nmounts nre in Rs. million unless otherwise stnted) 

Other comnrehensive income 

A. (i) Items that will not be reclRsslfied to pror.t or loss 
- Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) 

(ii) Income tax relating to above 

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income tnx relnting to above 

Other comprehensive income attrlbutnble to Mlndspnce REIT 

Other comprehensive Income aUributnble to non controlling 
intercsl.!1 

Tnlnl comprehensive income for the period 

1 otnl comprehensive income /(lmu) for the period nttrlbutablc 
tu Mindspace REIT 

Totnl comprehensive income for the period nUributAble to non 
co11trolllng lntrrests 

Earnings per unit 
Basic 
Diluted 

Slgnincnnt Accounllng policies 

See the accompanying noLcs lo the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Slotements 

Note For the qunrtcr 
ended 

31 Decem her 2020 
(UnRudited) 

t ,400 

1,306 

94 

5 I 
2.20 
2.20 

4-56 

For the qu11rter For the nine 
ended months ended 

30 Sept em her 2020 31 Decem her 2020 
(UnRudited) (Unaudited) 

684 2,079 

626 1,927 

58 152 

1.55 3.06 
1.55 3.06 

From 
18 November 2019 

to 
JI December 2019 

(Unaudited)' 

(32) 

(32) 

Not Applicnblc 
Not Appllcnble 

From 
18 November 2019 

to 
31 March 2020 

(Audited)' 

(49) 

(49) 

Not Applicable 
Not Applicable 

• Since Mind space REIT was registered pursuant to fl trust deed dated 18 Novembe1 2019, the management has provided the information in Condensed Consolidated Statement of 111 ofit and 
Loss with ctTect from said periodic 18 November 20 I 9 for the period ended JI December 2019 and J 1 March 2020 

As per our report of even date ettached 

fo, Deloitte Hn,kins & Sells LLP 
Charle1ed Aecounlanls 
Firm's re~istrolion number: l I l36GW/W-I000l8 

Nile.sh Shah 
Partner 
Membe1 ship number: 49660 

Place: Mumbm 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Manngcrs LLP 
(acting a, the Manager lo Mind space Business Pa, ks REIT) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: IO Feb 2021 

\ll nod N. llohlro 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 

Preeti N. ChhedR 
Chief Financial O.Dicer 
DIN: 0806670J 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: INIREIT/19-20/00J 

Condensed Consolidated Financlnl Statements 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
(All 11mounts are in Rs. million unlen otherwbe stRted) 

A Cuh nows from oneratln2 ntlvttie, 

Profit before tax 
Ad lull111ent1 for: 
Depreciation and a111ortisation expense 
Finance costs 
Jntercst income 
Provision for doubtful debts (net) 
Net gains/(losses) on financial asselS at fair valu~ through 

profit or loss 

Gnin on redemption of mutual fund units 
Lease Rent 
Porei~n exchange nuctuation loss (nol) 
011er1tlng 1u•ofit/(loss) before workina; capital changes 

Movement In wo,·king capih1l 

Decrease in invenlories 
Decrease in trade receivables 
Decrease in olher non-current financial nsselS 
(Increase) in olher currenL financial 11.sscts 
Decrease/ (increuse) in other non-current assets 
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets 
Increase/ (decrease) in other non current financial liabilities 
Incrense in other current financial liabilities 
(Decrease)/ increase in other non-current liabilitii:s and provisions 
(Decrense) / increose in other current liabilities and provisions 
(Decrease) i increase in regulatory deferral account (essets / liabilities) 
(Decrcsisc) / increase 111 trode payabll!s 
CMlh acnerated/(uscd in) rrom 011cr11tiom1 

Oirt::cl taxes paid not of refund received 
Net cuh RCncnted/(used in) from operath12 actlvitlc!I (A) 

ll Cuh now1 from inve.ttlne ntlvltles 

l!xpenditure incurred on investment properly and investment 

property under construction includinK capita I advances, net 
of capilal creditors 

Purchase of properly, plant and equipment Rnd intanyible 
assets 
Investment in mutual fund 
Proceeds from r~demption of investment in mutudl fund 
Movement in fixed deposit!, with maturity more than three 
months 

Loans repayment received from body corporates 
Purchase oflnvestments (Preference shares) 
Interest received 
Net cRsh a,enerated from lnvcstinK activities ( B) 

Fo1· the qnRl'ter 

ended 
JI December 2020 

(UnAudited) 

1,920 

811 
599 
(8) 

(1) 
13 
9 

3,325 

17 
(45) 

5 
(572) 

(4) 
(96) 
(6S) 
125 

(17) 
(36) 
(10) 

:12 
2,858 

JSQ 
2 478 

(1,604) 

(21) 

(1,670) 
1,670 
(229) 

I) 
(1,854) 

For the quarter Por tht ulu ~ mornft, From From 
ended ended U November 2019 18 November 1019 

30 September· 1020 31 Decembct' 2020 to to 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 31 Decembet' 2019 JI MArch 2010 

(Unaudited)• (Audited)' 

1,041 2,957 (32) (49) 

496 1,307 
501 1,100 
(33) (41) 

23 2) 
()) (3) 

(I) (2) 
(5) 

(j 

2,019 5,349 (32) (49) 

(2) 15 
15S 110 
22 27 

(61) (633) 
(60) (64) 

14 (82) 
30 (35) 

(256) (128) 32 49 
17 

274 2)8 
I 5 
I J~ 

2,178 5,037 

22 60) 

I 955 4,433 

(1,111) (2,815) 

(I) (22) 

(4,600) (6,270) 
4,601 6,271 

119 (110) 

12,382 12,382 
(334) (334) 
1.488 1.487 

12,444 10,590 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-201003 

Condensed Consolidated Fin11ncl11I Stntements 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
(All amounts al'e in Rs. million unless othe1·wi8e stated) 

C Cash nows from finnncing activities 

Proceeds from external borrowings 
Repayment of external borrowinWi 
Proceeds from issue of units 
Collection Iowa rds Offer For Sale 
Payment to Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in respect 
of Offer For Sale 

Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures 
Expenses incurred towards Initial Public OfferinM 
Non-convertible debentures issue expenses 
Payment towards lease liabilities 
Dividend paid (including tax) 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash generated used In nnanclng actlvhles ( C) 

Net lncrease/(decreRse) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash eqnlvnlents at (he bealnnlnR of the period 
Cash nnd cnsh equivalents acq1drecl due to asset 
acquisition (refer note 45) 
Cash and cash equivalents at lhe end of the 11eriod 

Cash and cash eaulvalents conmrlses (nfer nole no. 16A & 28\ 

Cash on hand 
Balance witl, banks 

- on current accounts 
- in escrow accounts•• 

Deposit accounts with less than or equnl to three months maturity 
Cheaues on hand 
Less : Bank overdra fl 
Cash nnd c11sh equivalents at the end of the 11erlod 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

Note: 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 December 2020 
(Unaudited) 

1,787 
(6,303) 

(27) 

2,000 
(10) 
(34) 

I 
(187) 
(592) 

(3,363) 

(2,739) 

3,893 

1,154 

3.05 I 

584 

/2 483) 
1,154 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 September 2020 
(Unaudited) 

150 
(23,990) 

10,000 
35,000 

(34,973) 

5,000 
(254) 

(4) 
(3) 

(548) 
(9,623) 

4,776 

0 
(883) 

3,893 

2 00 

5,071 00 
34 00 

248 00 

II 462) 
3,893 

For lhe nine months 
ended 

31 December 2020 
(Unaudited) 

1,937 
(30,293) 

10,000 
35,000 

(35,000) 

7,000 
(264) 

(38) 
(2) 

(187) 
( 1,140) 

(12,986) 

2,037 

0 
(883) 

1,154 

3.05 I 

584 

12 483) 
1,154 

From From 
18 November 2019 18 November 2019 

to to 
31 December 2019 31 MRrch 2020 

(UnRudlted)• (Audited)• 

I The Trust has issued units in exchange for acquisition or assets during the period ended 30 September 2020, The same has not been reflected in Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the 
quarter ended 30 September, 2020 and nine months ended 31 December, 2020 since these were non-cash transactions (refer note 45) 

2 Durins the quarter ended 31st December 2020, a tot.al amount of Rs 134 million (including a sum of Rs SO million incurred during the quarter and Rs 111 million incurred for the period From 01 
Allyust to 31 December 2020) has been transFerred from investment property under construction to Finance Leese receivable pursuant to lease commencement oF tit outs, 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refor note 4-56 

• Since Mindspace REIT wes resistered pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019, the management has provided the inFormetion in Condensed Consolideted Stalemenl oFCash Flow with 
effect from s11id period i e 18 November 2019 For the period ended 31 December 2019 and 31 March 2020 

0 Rs 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspo.ce REIT on 29 September 2020, redemeed on 30 September 2020 and proceeds were received on I October 2020 

As per our report or even date attached: 

for Delollte HRSkln, & Sell, LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: l I 7366W/W-100018 

Nllesh Shnh 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 

Piece: Mumbai 
Date: 10 Feb 2021 

Preeti N, Chheda 
Chi~} HnanciaJ Offic~f' 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO Feb 2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity 
(All amounts arc in Rs. million unless otherwise stated, 

A. Corpus 
Balance as on 18 November 2019• 
Corpus received during the period .. 
Balance as on 31 March 2020 
Balance as on 1 April 2020 
Additions during the period 
Closin2 balance as at 31 December 2020 
u Corpus rccc[vod durfnl! !he peri od Rs. I 0.000 (Rupc()s Ten Thousand on ly) 

n 1/uit ( '~nlfol 

Balance as on 18 November 2019• 
U11its issued during the period 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 
Balance as at I April 2020 
Aud: Umts issued during the period (refer note 21) 
Less: l,suc expenses 
Balance as at 31 December 2020 

C 01 t 1er ct111H y 
Retained Earnin!!s 
Balance as on 18 November 2019• 
Loss for the period 
Balance as al 31 March 2020 
Balance as al I April 2020 
Add: Profit/ (loss) for lhe period 
Acid: Other comprehensive income 
Balance as al 31 December 2020 

Significant acconnlin~ policies - refer note 3 

Se,' th~ accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidaied l'inancial Sialemenls - rerer note 4-56 

Amount 
-

0 
0 
0 

-
0 

Amount 
. 
. 
-
-

163 ,080 
(241) 

162,839 

Amount 
-
(49) 
(49) 
(49) 

I 927 

-
1 878 

• Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019, lhe management has provided the information in 
Condensed CQnsoiidaied Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity with efiect from said period ie 18 November 2019 for the period ended 31 
Mnrch 2020. 

As pc1 oL•r report of even dRle altached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountanls 
Firm· s registntion number: 117366W /W-1000 I 8 

Nilesh Slrnh 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Plucc: Mumbai 
Dale : IO l'eb 2021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting as the Manager 10 Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date . 1 0 Feb 2021 

Vlnod N. Rohirn 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date . IO Feb 2021 

/,o. t_ t_,G_, . )J c.,)J.µ-d-
Prcctl N. Chhcda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN : 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO Feb 202 I 



\'IINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS R•:rr 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Disclosure pursuant to SERI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts arr in Rs. million unless otherwise staled) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant lo guidance under Parngrnph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(i) Mindspace REIT Standalone 

Sr. no. Description 

I. Cash flows received from Asset SPVs including bul not limited to: 
interest 
dividends {net of applicable taxes) 
repayment of REIT Funding 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction (net of applicable taxes) 

redemption proceeds from preference shares or any other similar instrument 

2 Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets, sale of shares of Ass el SPYs, 
liquidation al any other asset or investment (111cl. cash cquivalcnls) or any form of fund 
raise at Mindspace REIT level adjusted for the following: 

applicable capital gains and other taxes, if any 
debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transaction costs 
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the 
REIT regulations 
any acquisition 
investments as permitted under the RlolT regulations 
lending to Asset SPVs 

as maybe deemed necessary by the Manager 
] . Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs not 

distributed pursuant to an earlier plan lo re-invest in accordance with the REIT 
Rcµ,ulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

4, Add : Any other income received by Mindspace RE[T not caplured herein 
5 Less· Any other expenses paid by Mindspaee RE[T not captured herein 
6 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure at Mindspace RElT level 

l .css. Net debt repayment/ {drawdow11), redemption of prcl'erencc shares/ debentures/ 
any other such instrument/ premiums/ any other obligations/ liabilities, etc ., as maybe 
deemed necessary by the Mam1ger 

8. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security 
deposits, working capital, etc, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 

li Less : Interest paid on external debt borrowing al Mindspace REIT level 
IO Less: Income tax and other taxes (if app licable) at Lhe standalone Mindspacc REIT 

kvcl 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) 

Noles: 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 December 2020 

201 
2,663 

2,420 

(20) 

(2,400) 

I 
(33) 

7 

2,839 

I The Governing Board of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 10 February 2021, has declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 4.78 per unit which aggregates 
to Rs 2,835 million for the quarter ended 31 December 2020 The distributions of Rs 4.78 per unit comprises Rs 4.25 per unit in the form of dividend and Rs 0.53 per unit in 
tl,e l<irm of interest payment 

2. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows has not been disclosed for comparative periods since the first distribution of the REIT as stated in the Final Offer DocL11nent is 
being made upon eomplelion of the first full quarter ic quarter ended 31 December 2020 after the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges. 

3 I.ending to SPVs from limd rnised at REIT level in previous quarter has been excluded for the purpose ofNDCf,' calculation 
4 Repayment of REIT fonding which is further lent to SPVs has been captured under "Liquidation of assets" 
5 Lending to and repayment from SJ>Vs within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" 
o. Bom,wing from and repayment to SPVs within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidaleu Financial Statements - refer note 4-56 

As per our report of even date attached ; 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

F1rn, 's registration number: 1 I 7)66W/W-I 00018 (u Manager of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Nilcsh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : IO Feb 2021 8 

:J_ n i v fµ.,.£ µ ~ 
ccl C. Raheja 

Muml,er 
DIN: 00029010 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 Feb 2021 

Vinod N. Rohira 
Chief Execlllive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO Feb 2021 

Preeti N. Chheda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 Feb 2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
IIN:IN/REl'l119-20/003 
Condensed Consolidnlcd Financinl Statements 
Disclosure pursunnt to SEOI circuh11· No, CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts IU'C in R.s. million unless otherwise stnled) 

Net Distl'ibutnblc Cnsh Flows (NDCl-1 pursunnl to guid1111cc lmdcr Pnn1graph 6 lo SEU) cil'culnr No, CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(ii) Cnlculntiun or net llistt•ibut11ble cnsh nows nl cncll Asset SPY 

Fol' the Q11111·te1· cnclcd JI December 2020 pursunnl to guidnncc untlc1· P11mgr11ph 6 to SEBI circulnr No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 

Auc"tlo M IWl' I.. ll ud:,u111 lcw Giij:Wlux KU C" lufni 
I r l'nn t nl'l r r lnx RS per SL1.t11 111tm t nr prr1n1 i.ml lc11Wlnc~mc nn<I cxpcncJilurc 

(slandalone) (A) 
Adtl: Dcpreci11lion and amortisation 11s per Statement of profit and loss/income aml 

49 

exrJenditme 1 tJ 
Adct/lcs'1: Loss/gain on sale or1cnl eslalc nssels 
Acid: Proceeds from snlc of 1enl estate assets, liqu1chllion of any othc1 assi.:t or imcslmenl 
(mcl c1LSh equi,nlents) or any form of fund rmse ot the Asset SPY level ncljusled ror the 
folio,, ing: 2.170 

llcbts sclllcd or tlue lo be selllcd from snle proceeds 
trnnsnction cosls 
p1 oceecls re-invested or planned lo be I c111Ycstcd in accortlnnce \\ 11h lhe REIT 
Regulations 
ruw acquisition 
imcslment in any form ns permitted under the REl11 Re!Julntions 

,LS mnv be deemed necessary by lhc Manngcr 
' Acid ' Proceeds from sale of real estate nssels nol d1s1ribulcd ptlfslllull to nn earlier pion to 1c 

in\'1.!Sl. if such procl!Cds me nol inle11ded to be invcslcd subsequently 

Ii AtltVlcss An: othe1 item ofnon-cnsh expense/ non c11Sh income (nel of nctu.il cash nows 
for lhl.!se 1te111s), as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
For c.xnrnple, an) dccrease/incrensc in cnrrying amount of an asset or of a liability 
rt:Cognised in sl.ilemenl of profit and loss/income and e:-.:penditure on 1nensurement of lhe 
nsset 01 lhc liability al fair vnlue, interest cost HS Jler cffccti\'1.'.! inleresl rate method, deferred 
tn.x, lcn.sc rents recognised on n strn1ghl line bnsis, etc 
Add Cash !low 1eceived from Asset SPV fllld inreslmcnt enlily, ifnny includmg {npplicnble 
for I loldco only to the extenl not covered nlXl\'e): 

tep11v11u!nl of ll1e debt in case of ir1\ csl1ne11ts by I\ ay of deUt 
procet:ds from bu}-bilcks/ c,1p1tal rcduclion 

K Add Interest on bo1rowings from Mimlspncc REIT 
lJ Add/less: Other ndjustmc111s, i11cluding bl1t not limited lo ncl cha.rl!JCS in sccunt) deposits, 

wodrn1g capital, etc, ns 11111)' be dce111cd nccc'isary by the Mnnager (refer below Note 2 and 
]) 

10 Less Any e:,;pcnse in the nnlure ofc.ip11al e.xpcndilure including capitalized interest lheroon 
(tu Ille pnrlics other 1hw1 Mindspnc.c REI'!) overheads etc, 

11 
I css: Ncl debt 1cpnymc11t I (drnwdo\\11) / rcdc111plio11 of preference sbnres I debentures/ 
any other such mstn1111ent / premiums / 11ccrued interns! / any other ublignlions / liabilities 
etc , to pnrlies olher lhnn Mindspnt:e REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Mnnnger 

12 Less: Proceeds to shnreholders other thnn Mindsp.ice REIT through buybnck or shares/ 
capilnl reduction/ clividcncl pnid on preference or equity l:npilnl, buybnck clistrilmtion ta'- if 
any puitl on the same, nnd /Ur1hcr including buybnck distribulion Ill'\, if npplicnblc on 
distribution Lo Mindspace REIT (refer below Note 4) 

TUIJ\I Atllmrwr.110 (O J 

24 

47 

(37) 

(2,277) 

70N 

I ll 

1,620 

(15) 

(91) 

(I 2211) 

4 1 I 

(210) 

20 

47 

K7 

(JJ) 

(116) 

253 

217 
77 

JU 

NS 

2,4311 

57 

62 

(25) 

(]16) 

·137 

5] 

]5 

]60 

II 

(.153) 

(H97) 

(IUIJ 
(4R) 

lntlmu 

296 

(15) 

45 

l!l 

K1ll'r SuudtH\I 

351 431 

(22) 

J,IJ 

Oil ) 

(11) 

((,6) 

157 
503 

77 

421) 

II 

(2K6) 

(115) 

(69) 
IJ$ 

Nole I Slnicmenl oJ'Net Distributnble Cush Flo,1s have not been tlisclosed fo1 comparalirc periods since the first dislribution or1he REIT as stnled in the Final OrTer Document will be mnde upon completion ol' 
llw firsl fllll quarter afiet the listing of the Uni1s on the S1ock Exchanges i e 31 December, 2020 

Note 7.: i.ending to nnd repnymcnt from RElT within the some quarter has been ncljll~tetl lmcler "Other Adjuslmcnts" 

Nole 3: Borio,,ing from and repayment to REIT \\ithin lhc snme quaJler has been ndjusted under "Other Adjuslmenls" 

Note 11, As per Chapter V, clnuse l 6(a) of Securities and Exchange Hoard orindiil (Real Eslale Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as mnended from t11ne lo time, the entity is requited lo dislribute not less tha.r1 
90% of111.;t db,tributable cnsh nows oflhc entity lo Mindspacc REIT in proportion ofils holding in the SPY Sllbject lo applicable: provisions in the Comp.inies Act, 201.1 As pc1 distribution policy ndoptcd by !he 
governing board ofMindspi1cc REIT's Mnnagcr (K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP), any proceeds lo shnreholtlers othet thnn Mintlspace REIT is redur.ed to arrive al net distributable cash (h1ws (NDCF) 

'I he ubo,c 11011.' h11s been prepurcd ns per the dis1ribu1ion pohcy ndorted by the go,crning board of' Mindspnce REIT's Mnnnger, which 1s forming pm! or the Fino! orTer clocume111 orMmdspm.:e REIT nnd clocs 1101 
1..:p1e-se1l! amount rl\'ailable for declnrin!l dividend as per sec11011 123 or the Companies Act, 2013 rend wilh Declnration nntl Pn,mcnt of Dividend Rules 2014 

Nole 5 Du,-ing Lhe qunrtcr ended 3 tsl Deceml,er 2020, n lot al 11mount of Rs 134 million (includinl:l a sum of Rs 50 nullion incurred during lhc quorter) hos been trnnsfcrred from capital e:-.:pendilure lo olher 
;1tijustmc.11ts pursuanl to lca.se commencement of fit outs 

Sill,nificunt accounting policies - l'efcr note J 

Sl.!e lhc acco111pan)in!i note:.; to lhe Condensed Consolidaled Financial Statem~nts - refe1 note 4-56 

<\.s pet om rcpo1t ofc\Cll dale nll11checl: 

fo1 Deloille llnskins & Sells LLr 
Cluu tcr,:<I Accounta.r1ls 
r-um s registtu!ion number I 1736(1W/W~I00OIH 

Nilc.<i;h Shnh 
Pnrlnr.:r 
Mc111bc1ship number 49660 

Pince: Mumbni 
Dute : I {J Feb 2021 

for and on behnlfofthe Go,•erning Board of 
K Rnhcjn Corp Investment Mnnngcrs LLP 
(as Mnnager of1he Mindspace Business Porks REIT) 

lo/ ,>'-✓ 
•IC. Rnhcjn Vlnod N. Rohh 11 
t1/ii.-r CM~/ Ki:ci.:Wive Officer 

DIN, 00029010 DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Dnlc ; I II Feb 21121 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 111 Feb 2021 

rrectl N, Chhcdn 
Chic.f J,inm1dal <Hfir..er 
DIN: 08066703 

Pince; Murnbni 
Dote IO Feb 2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-201003 
Contlenscd Consolidated Finnncinl Stntemcnts 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts nre in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

Orgnnisntion Structure 
The inlerim condensed consolidated Jlnancial statements ('Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements') comprise financial statements ofMindspace Business Parks Real 
Estate Investment Trust ('Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited ('MBPPL'), Gigaplex Estate Private 
Limited ('Gigaplex'). Sundew Properties Limited ('Sundew) lntime Properties Limited ('lntime') , K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited ('KRIT'), KRC Infrashucture and 
P1ojects Private Limited ('KRC Infra'), Ilorizonview Properties Private Limited ('HorizonvieW), Avacado Prope1ties and Trading (India) Private Limited ('Avacado') 
(individually referred to as 'Special Purpose Vehicle' or 'SPV' and together referred to as 'Mindspace Business Parks Group'/'Mindspace Grm1p') , The SPVs are companies 

domiciled in India, 
Anbee Consttuctions LLP ( ' ACL') and Cape Trading LLP ('CTL') collectively known as (the 'S1mnsors' or the 'Co-Sponsors') have set up the 'Mindspace Business Pa,ks 
REIT' as an irrevocable 11 ust, pu1suant to the Trust Deed, undc1 lhc provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the T1 List has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate 
Investment Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Secmitics and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 having 
registration number RN :IN/RElT/ 19-20/003 The T1ustce to Mindspace REIT is Axis Tn1stee Services Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K 

Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the ' investment Manager') 

The objectives and principal aclivity of Mindspnce REIT is lo ca11y on 1he aclivily or a real eslatt investment trust, us permissible under tl,e REIT Regulations, to rnise 
runds lhrough lhe REIT, to nrnk~ Investments in acco1dnnce with the REIT Regula1ions and the Investment Slrategy nnd lo canyon the activities as may be requi1 ed for 

opcrnt,ng the REIT. including incidental cmd ancillmy matters tl1c1eto, 
Mindspuce REIT acquired lhe SPVs by acquiring nll 1he equity interest held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in lhe SPVs on 30 July 2020 In exchange for 
these equity inlerests, the above shareholders have been al lolled 55,66,54,582 Units of Mindspace Parks REIT issueJ at Rs 275 each 

M1ndspacc REIT went public .is per its plan for Initial Public Offer or Units after obtaining the required ctpprovals from lhe 1elcvant aulhor ilies The Un its were ullolle<l to 

the successful applicnnls on 4 Augusl 2020 
All these units were subsequenlly listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 AllHUSt 2020 
The brief activities and 1httrch11hlh1 m!lo111 uf1l11! SPVs are mwldC't'I bdnw· 

Name of the SPY 

MOl' l' L 

Sundew 

Activilic! 
Shareholding 

(In percentage) upto 30 July 20 

Sh11reholcling 
(in pcrcentnge) ns nl 31 December 20 

The SPY is engaged in real estate n!Ull' ASIA SO l'tnrf lloldlng (NQ) 1'10 Mindspace Business Parks 

development p1ojects such as Special 1. td (M 95¼) RElT : 100% 

Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Mr. Chnudl u L. Rnhc,lu jo1111ly wilh Mr, 
Technology Parks and other comme,cial Jy11I I l(nhojn (10,~M~) 
assets The SPY hos its projects in Airol i Mi·• J~o ll (' R11h~111 ja,111ly wH h M, , 
(Navi Mumbai), Pune and Pochararn Ch•11d111 I. Rnhejlt (g,OI¾\ 
(llyderabad) The SPY is a deemed C'ftllilnrr '1'rmlt 1111 1, 1.1• (H 11 1\'o ) 
dist1ibution liccnsc1.: pursuant to which il can Casa Maiia P1operlies LLP (8 01%) 
dislfibutc power to Lhc SEZ tenants within PHlm Sheltct Estate De velopment LLP 
the Park It commenced disttibution of (8 01¾) 
eleclricity in its project at Ai1oli, Navi K Raheja Corp Piivate Limilcd (6 47%) 
Mumbai f,om 9 Ap1il 2015 M, Ravi C. Raheja jointly with Mr Chandru 

L Raheja and Mrs Jyoti C Raheja (7 37%) 

Mr Neel C Raheja jointly with Mr, 

Chandru L Raheja and Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
(7 37%) 
Anbee Const,uclions LLP (6.37% ) 

Cape Trading LLP (6 37%) 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
(5.26%) 

BREP VIII SllS Pearl llolding (NQ) 1,1<1 

(0 02%) 

BREP ASIA SBS Pearl Holding (NQ) Liu. 
(003%) 

Others (3 17%) 

The SPY is engaged in real estate K Raheja Corp Private Limited (58 .90%) 

development projects such as Special 
Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Mr, Chandru L, Raheja Jointly with M,s 

Technology Parks and other commercial Jyull C Raheja (37.50%) 
assets The SPY has its projects in Airoll BREP ASIA SO Pearl Holding (NQ) Pte 

(Navi Mumbai) The SPY is a deemed I.Id (3 59%) 

distribution licensee pursuant to which it can Othtill (0 01%) 
distribL1te powe1 to the SEZ tenants within 
the Park lt crnnmenccd distribution o 
electricity in its p1ojcct at Airoli, Ntwi 
Mumbai f, om 19 A ril 20 I 6, 

Mlmlt1pna.o Business Parks 
REIT 100% 

The SPY is engf!gcd in development and a~nc.~I f-lardwarc & Parks Plivate LlrnHtd Mind space Business Pai ks 
leasing/l icensing of IT pa, k, SEZ 10 different ( 19 20%) REIT : B9% 
customers in Hyderabad BR!;I' ASIA SO Pea,I Holding (NQ) Pie I.Lu Andhra Pradesh Industrial lnfraslructure 

(14.95%) Corporation Limrted (11%) 

Andhra Pradesh Industrial Inrrn,trmJturc. 
Corpo1a1ion Limited (11 00%) 

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Mrs. 
Jyoti C. Raheja (9.97%) 

Ca."' Maria Properties LLP (5 85%) 
Raghukool Estate Developement l,l..11 

(S ,8So/,) 
ap!IOII Trading LLP (5 85%) 

Pe.1111 Shelter Estale Development LLlt 
(S 85%) 

AHIJ.c~ Constructions LLP (5 .23%) 
Copo Trading LLP (5 23%) 

Otho ro I 1.02% 

10 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidntcd Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All am oun tJ 11rc h1 lb . mllllun unl M~ othen\•lse :unu.• c.U 

lnlunr. The SPV is engaged in development and Ch011Llru Raheja jointly with Jyoti Rnhc-J U Mindspace Business Pru ks 

KRlT 

Kl\( ' Infra 

1101 izionvie-w 

Avacado 

leasing/licensing o/' IT park lo different (23 98%) REIT • 89% 
customers rn Hyderabad ll REP Asin SO Pearl Holding (NQ) Pte l,1J Andhra Pradesh Indust rial Infrastructure 

( 14 95%) Corporation Limited (I 1%) 

Andhrn P1 adesh lndust1 ia1 Jn frn:itru,11 ure 
Corporn11 011 Limited (11 00%) 

Casa Maria Properties LLP (6 12%) 
Ra~)mkool Estate Developement LLP 
(612%) 

Capstan Trading LLP (6 12%) 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
(6 12%) 

/\11b0c Constructions LLP (5 47%) 
C,po Trading LLP (5 47%) 
Othcr:1 ( I I 65¾) 

The SPV is engaged in development and DIU!I' ASIA SO Pearl Holding (NQ) l'tc. Mindspace Business Parks 
leasing/licensing of IT park to differ en I I.HI ( 14 95%) REIT: 89% 
cuslorne1s in Hydcrnlmd r\ 1n fhr,1 P1adesh lnclL1strird lufrmn1uc1U11e Andhra Pradesh Industrial lntiast1ucturo 

Coqmr,Umn Limiled (I 1.00%) Corpoiation Limiled (11%) 
i>nlm Shelter Eslnte Development 11.11 

(1l 5f1I~) 
C't1M Maria Proper tres LLP (9 SO%) 
R 1!,hukool Estate Developernenl 1,(,1' 
(9 SO%) 

Capstan Trading LLP (9 SO%) 
Anbee Constructions LLP (8 SO%) 
Cape Trading LLP (8 SO%) 
Ivory Properties And Hotels Private Li mih:Q 
(K 22'Vol 
IChnmlru L Roheja jointly with Jyoti C 
Rnl rcja (6 00%) 

Othel'8 M KJ',;,1 
The SPV is engaged in real estate K Raheja Private Limited (42 50%) 
development projccls such a.-. Special 
Econom ic Zone (SEZ) and Information t<. Raheja Corp Private Limited (42 50%) 
Technology Pmks The SPV hos its project in 1)111:I' Asia SO Pearl Holding (NQ) Pie t 1d 
Kharadi Punc The SPY 1s a deemed ( 14 95%) 
disltibution licen:,,ce pursua11t lo which il can 
distribute power to the SEZ te1rnnts within llRl; I' VIII SBS Pearl Holding (NQ) Ltd 

lhe Paik It cumrnc11ced distribution of (0 02%) 
clec1ricity in its proJccl al Khmadi, Pune BREP ASIA SBS Pearl Holding (NQ) l 1,t 
from I June 2019 {OOl~frl 

Mindspace Business Pa,ks 
REIT : 100% 

The SPV is engaged in dcvdopment anq Mr Neel C, Rnl rcja Joln1l1• with Mr. C'hnndrtl Mindspace Business Parks 
leasing/licensing of IT park to differen t L Rahejo and Mrs Jyoti C Raheju (42,SO%) REIT 100% 

customers in Chc1111ai 
Mr Ravi C Raheja jointly with Mr. Chandru 
L Rah~i• and Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja (42 SO¾) 

lllUW ASIA SO Pearl Holding (NQ) rtu 
l,td , (14 9S%) 

Other! /0,05¼ ) 

'l'he SPY has developed an lnduslr ial pftrk An bu• Constructions LLP ( 13 18%) 

rrir lhc purpose of letting out to different 
,~rstolll~l li in Paradigm building at Malad• Cnpc Troding LLP ( 13 18%) 
Mumbai and is being maintained u,d Capsta11 T1adi11g LLP (14 53%) 
(111crn1cJ by the SPV The SPV also has n Raghukool Estate Dcvelopement LLP 
co11 1111crt1ial p1ojcc1 in Bandra Kwl t1 Casa M.u1a Prope1t1es LLr (14 SJ%) 
C'o1111>lt.'X, Mumbai Palm Sheller Estt,le Development LLP 

BREP Asia SO Pearl Holding (NQ) Pte 
( 14 Q5%) 

Others 10 57'!.1,\ 

II 

Lill 

Mindspace Bl1siness Parks 
REIT : 100% 



MINDSrACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: I N/REIT/19-20/003 
Conllcnsell ConsoliLlntcll Fin11nci.il Slntemcnts 
Notes to Accounts 
(All nn1011nts nrc in Rs. million unless otherwise slntc<l) 

2 Bnsis of prcpurntion 

The C ondcnscd Consolidated Financinl Stntcmenls of Mind space Business Pai ks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as al JI Deccmbe1 2020, the 
Ccndensed Consolidated Statement of Profit And Loss, including othe1 comprehensive income, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for quarter and nine 
months ended 31 Dcccmbe1 2020, the Condensed Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the n111e months ended 31 December 2020, the Stc1temenl of Net 
Distributable Cashflows of Mi11dspacc Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter ended 31 December 2020 and a summary of the signiticanl accounting 
policies and selecl exr,lmrnlory info1mat1011 and othc, addilional financial disclosures The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prer,arcd in accmdance 
with the requi,ements ofSEBI (Real Estale Investment Trusts Regulations,2014 ,os amended from lime to time read including any guidelines and ciicLilars issl1ed thereunder 
reat.l wilh SF.Bl Ci1cula1 No CIR/IMO/DF/146/2016 dated Dcccmber29,2016 ("the REIT regulalions"); Recognition and me<1surement principles laid dawn under Indian 
Account mg Standard (lnJAS) 34 "lnlcnm Pinancial Rcpo1 tmg", as p1 escribed in Rule2( I )(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standa1ds) Rules, 2015 (as amended) 
and othc, accountmg ptinciples gc11e1ally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT 1e~ulat1011s 

The Condensed Consolidated r111ancrnl Statements wetc ::mtho1ised for issue m accordance with the resolution passed by the Govc1111ng Board of the Mmrnge1 on 10 
Fcbruai v 2021 

Basis ot'Co11solidatio11 
M 1ndspace Bu.sines~ Parks Group co11solidatcs e111i1ics which it owns or cont1 ols The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements com pt 1sc the fi11a11c1al stalemc11ts of 
Mm<lspacc Business pmks REIT and its Sllbsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note I Conuol C)(IS!s when the patent has power over the cnlity, 1s exposed, 01 has ,ights, {() 
vminblc rclt11ns from its involvement with the entity m1d has lhe ability to affect those 1etums by using i1s power aver the entity Powe1 1s demonst1i\tcd lh1ough existing 
11ghts thal give the ability lo d11cct rclcvm1t activ1t1cs, those which s1g11ific,mtly affect lhe ent1ly's relu111s Subsidiaiies me consolidated from lhc date co11trnl commences 
until the <lat!.! control ceases 

The p1 occdl1re for p1cpari11g Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Ousiness Parks Group arc stated below: 
n.J The financial statement~ of Mindspac.:e Ousiness PMks Group me consolidated for like items and intragroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, eql11ty, 
income, expenses 011d cash fl1.1ws between entities of Mi11d,;pace Bus111c:-.s Pm ks G1oup are eliminated in full upon consoliJation 

IJ) ,\11dlm1 Pradesh Industrial lnfrasltuetu1e Co1po1atio11 Limited, which is a sluucholdc1 in lntime, KRIT and Sundew have not aweed to exchange their equity i11tc1cst in 
the SPVs (lnltmc, KRIT anJ Sundew). lints, Min<lspctcc Business Parks REIT has 1ccorded a non•eontrolling intc1ests fm these Sl>Vs fhe mtcrest of non-contrnlling 
shaicholdc1s may be 111iti1:1lly measured either ,11 fair vnluc 01 nt the 11on-cont1olling inte1esl proportionate share of the foit value ol' lhe acquitec'/; identifiable net ;,sscls The 
choice of measurement basis is mode 011 an acquisitiun-hy-acquisition basis Subsequent lo acqHisition, the cmrying mnount of non-controlling 1ntc1csts ts the mnounl of 
1hosc interesti- at initial recogn1t11m plus the non-controllmg inte1esls' share of subsequent changes in equity 

-:J The" figures in the notes lo accounts and disclosures have been Consolid,Hed line by line nnd [nter-company transactl'Jns m1d bnlances including l1111caliscd p1of1ts l'!rc 
eliminated in full 011 consolidation 

dJ MB PPL has fum wholly owned subsidiaries namely Sampada Easlpro P1 ivfltc Lld, EdL1cato1 Pratecl1 P1 ivflle Ltd, Dices Real con J>r ivate Ltd and Happy Eastcon Privmc 
Ltd ( four subsidiaries') As 011 31 Dccembe1 2020, the car1yi11g value of these invcs1rncnts in the books of rvtBPPL is Nil Mo1covc1 MlJPPL lrns npplicd to Registrar of 
Companies (ROC') for 'strikin~ of the names oJ these subsidiaries from the Reg1st1 ar of Companies Since these subsidiaries ar~ 1101 purl of Mindspece Business Paik!,; 
G, oup1

!. 1 cal eslall! investment tr u~I st rucll1re. these subsidiar ics have nol been Consolidated in these Condensed Consolidated rinancinl Stntemcnls 

c) Mindsp1:1cc Business Paiks G1oup l1olt.ls 4% of the eql11ty share capital of Sto\rg<'lze P1opc11ies Plivate Limited, a company involved in the rc.,I estate development, 
Mindspacc Business Parks Urmip is or the view ttrnt it is not able l1J cxcrc.:1se sig11iticanl inlluc11cc over Stc1rgc1zc t11opcrties Private Limited and hence. it has nol been 
Hccm11t1c<l using ..:quity method 

J Si~nilirunl lll't'flllllling pulide.• 

(a) runclio1rnl cmd present.ition cmrency 
The Condenset.l Con:.olidatcd Financial Statements 0t e p, esented in lndim1 rupees, which 1s Mindspacc Business Pai ks Grol1p's l\111ctional cur1 ency and the cur rcncy or the 
1>ri1muy l!conom1i.:: e.nviro11me11t in which Mindspricc Business Pm ks Grol1µ opc1 ales All fi nancial infm malion presented in lmlian I upeC's h<1s been rounded off to ne,ucsl 
million except olherwisc stnted 

lb) Basis of mensu1 i.:mcnl 
The Condensed Can~ul1dated rinancial Statemenls ate on the historical cost basis, except far th~ following: 
• Certain financial c1ssets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regaiding financial inslrume11t): measu1cd al fair values; 
- Net Ll~fincd \Jenefil (;:,sset)/ lil'lbihty less p1ese11t value of defined obligations: Fair value of'plm1 assets less p1esent value ofdcf111cd benefit plan 
(cJ Use ofjudgement.J a11d estimates 
The p1cpn1c1tion of'lhe Condensed Consolidated rinanciEil Slatements in conformity with generally accepted c1ccounli11g principles in India (Ind AS) 1cquires management lo 
,nakf cs1i1nt1tcs and assumplions thal affect the rcpo1 te<l Eimounls of assets liabilities, income and expenses Actual results ce1uld diffe1 from those estimates 
Es1im,1ted and un<lC'l'lying ass11mpt1011s arc 1cvicwed on a pe11odic basis Revisions lo acc.:ounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates me 1cv1sed 
and in any l'ulwe periods affected 
Information about clitical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant cffccc on the amounts recognised in the Condensed Consoli<lntt.·d 
Financial Statements is included in the following noles: 

Estimation of lease te1 m for I cvenuc rec.:ognition 

L'.stim-Hion of useful life ofp1ope1t_y, plant and equipment and investment p1ope1ly 

~sumation of recognition of defcned lax nsst!ls, availability of ruturc taxuble profit against which lax losses cat I ied fm ward can be used llnd income taxes 
trnpui11nc11t and Pair valuation ol'Invcstmcnt Ptopctly, [nvl!stmcnt p1upe1 t:1 under r.:onstruclion, P1operly, plant and equipment and Capital wo1 k-in-p1 ogress 

I nte1 est capital iscd to 111vcslrncnt p1 opc1 ty under consl1 ucl1on 

Applying the concentration test for acqL1isition made during lhc period 
Mindspace Uroup has :ipplicd judgment in determining whethe1 the acquisition of SP Vs during the period are considered lo be asset Ac,1uis1t1ons or bL1siness combinalions 
Mindspace Grcup has also applied the opli?nal concentrnt1011 test available undc1 l11d AS 103 Significant judgement involved in c1llncatil1H the cost of the acquisition to the 
,1,,;scts a11d liabilitie~ ac-;quircd based 11po11 thci1 1clative fair vah1es determined by independent va h1c1's flt the acquisition dat~, and 110 goodwill is recognized - refe1 note 45 

,rn ,\sset ncqu1sitio11 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Con.solidntcd Financial Statements 
Nolf:!s to Accounts 
(All Amo11nls 1trc in Rs. million unless olherwisc i,tnlcU) 

d) Curi ent versus non-current classification 
Mrndspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Bolance Sheet based on current! 11011-currcnt classitication: 
An asset is t1eated as current when it is: 
- Exr,ccted lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the 1cpo1ling period; or 
- Cash 01 e;ash equivalent unless 1estrictcd fwm being exchanged 01 used to settle a liability for at least twelve months Rfier the 1epo1 ting period 

All other assets ,uc classified as non-cur1ent 
A liability is current when : 
- It is expected to be seltled in normal ope1ating cycle: 
- It is held p1 ima1 ily for the purpose of trading; 
- 1l is dl1e to be settled within lwelve months after the 1cpo11ing pe1iod; or 
- Tltc,c is no unconditional right lo clefe1 the selllemcnl oJ'the liability for al leasl twelve months af\er lhc repo1ting period 
Mindspace Business Parks Gtoup classifies all other liabililies as non-c,1rre11t 
Deferred tax assets and liabililics arc classified as non-c111rc111 assets and linbilities 
The opernli11g cycle is the time br.:twecn the acquisition of assets for p1occssing and their 1calisation in cash and cash equivalents Mindspacc Dl1siness Pa1ks Group has 
identified twelve months as its openting cycle 
(e) Measurement of fair values 
Mindspace Business Parks G1oup's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for bolh financial and non-financial asscls and liabilities 
Mindspacc Bustncss Parks Group has an established control frmncwo1 k with respect to the measurement of fnir values 
They ,egularly review sig,11if1cant unobse1 vable inputs nud valuation adjustments If third 1n:11 ty information is used lo measmc l"air values then the finance team nssesses the 
evitlcnce obtained fiom the third parties to suppo,t the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fai1 value hierarchy in 
which such valuations should Oc classifi!!d 
When measuring the fair vuluc of an asscl 01 a linbility, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market ch,ta as fm AS possible Fair vfllucs arc calego1iscd into 
diffc1 ent levels in a foi1 vah1e hie1 m chy based on the inputs used in the valw'llion techniques as follows : 
• Level I quoted prices (unnd,iusteJ) in .\Clive markets for idcnticnl assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement <lute 
• Level 2 inputs other tlrnn quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the E1sset or liability, either directly (i c as p1 ices) rn· indirectly (i c de11vcd from 
prices) 
• Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable inpuls) 
ff the inputs used to measu1e the fair value of an asscl OI' a ltabilily fall 11110 different levels of the fair vah,e hicrn1chy, then lhe Cai, value mcasrnement is categorised in its 
cnt11cty in the same level of the fa11 value hicrnrchy llS the lowest level input that is s1gniflcanl to the cnti1c measurement. 

3.1 fimtnciHI gunrnnlce cunlructs 
The Group on a case to case basis elects to account fo1 financial guarantee cont1acts as a financial instruments or as an insurance cont1acts as speciticd in Ind AS 109 on 
Financial Instruments and Ind AS 104 on lnsu1ancc contracts The G1oup has regarded all its financial guarantee contracts as insl1rancc contructs AL the end of each 
1cport111g period, the G1m1p per forms a liability ade(JL1acy test, (i.e it assesses the likelihood of a pay-out basecl 011 cuirent undiscountcd cslimales of futu1 c cash flows), and 
m1y deficiency is rcco8nised in Jnd AS Consolidated statcmcnl ofµrotil and loss 

3.2 rropcrty, Jllant nnd equlpmcnl 
(11) Recognition nn<l mcRJuremenl 

P1ope1 ty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation ond impairment, if any Dcp1eciation is cha1ged when the assets are 1eady for their intended 
11se Purchase pi 1cc or co11s1ruction cost is defined as any consideration paid or fair value of any other conside1 E1tion given to acquire the asset. 

(h) SuUscqucnl cx11cn<liturc 

Subsequent expendilurc is capitalr:tcd only it' ii is probable that the futu1e economic benefits associated with the cxpcnditlffC will flow to Mind.space 13l1siness Parks Group 
Subsequent costs a,e included in the .ts.set's carrying amounl 01 ,ecog,nised es a separate asset, as app1opliate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
,1ssociatcJ with the item will flow lo Mind.space Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured 1eliably t\11 other repai1s and maintenance are cha1ged to 
the Condensed Consolidalcd Statement of P1 ofit and Loss du1 ing the reporting period in which they ilte incurred 

(c) Dcpreclntion / Amurtisnllun 
Dcprcc1ation / a111oriisatio11 is p1uvided using strnight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management ove1 the balance llscful life The estimated 
useful lives of the assets, which a1 e h1ghe1· than, lowc1 than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule ll of the Companies Act 2013, a1 c listed in the table below 
Dcp1cc1ation on addition/ deletion ofp1operly, plant and equipment made during the year is provided on pro-1ala basis from/ to the date of such addition/ deletion 

The assets and cstimate<l useful life aie as unde1 : 

Auel group 
Estlmnlcd Useful Lifo 

(In yenrs) 

P ower as.s.£.ls Other nsscts 
Right lo use - Leasehold lr111d Bahmce Lease term . 
Buildings• 75/90 . 

Plant end machinery 15 15 

l~lectrical installation• 15 15 

Computers ] 3 
'I empornry Structu1 e• I 
Office cquipmenl • •I 4 
Purnitu1•e and flxturcs• 7 
Vehicles• 5 

• For these class of assets, based on lcchn1cal m;sessmcnt the management believes the useful life of the assets is appi-opriatr.: which is different than those p1cscribcd l1ndc1 
Pmt C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 

(I) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residue\! value of all assets is estimated to be 5% of the 01 iginal cost of those respective assets 
(2) Assets individually cosllllB less than Rs 5,000 a1e fully w, itten off in the yea1 of acqu1s1l1011 
(3) The eslimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are I eviewed al the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation 
accounted for on a pl ospective basis, 

(u) Do-rccognltiou 
J\11 item of properly, plant and equipment 1s dcrccognized upon disposal or when no futme economic benefits arc expected lo arise flam the continued use of the asset Any 
gain or losJ arising on the disposal or ,ctucment of an item of property, plant and equipment is dete1mincd es the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed ConsolidRted Finnncinl Sh1tcmcnls 
Notes to Accounts 
(All Hmounts nrc in Rs, million unless otherwise stHted) 

{c) Capital work in pro_grcss 
Property, plant and equipment under conslruclion is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises of 
purchase price and any att1·ibutable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, e1 ection and commissioning expenses incuned in bringing the asset to its wo1 king condition 
for its intended use 

Advance paid and expenditure incu1red on acquisition/ construction ofp1operty, plant and eqliipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date 
are disclosed undc1 othe1 11011 currenl assets as advances on capital account and capilal work-in-progress respectively 

3.3 Intangible Assets 
(11) Recognition nnd memmrcmcnt 

An intangible asset is an idenlifiable non-monelary asset without physical substance Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separalely are initially 
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted fo1 on a prospective basis Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are 
acquired separately are ca1 ried at cost less impairment, if any 

(b) Subuquent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it inc1eases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates All other expenditure, including 
expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of P1ofit and Loss as incurred 

(c) Amorti:rntion 
Amortisation is calculated over the cosl of the asset, 01 other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value Amortisation Is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the date that they a1 e available fo1 use 

Aue( grou1> 
Estimated U.!1ef11l Life 

(in yenr,) 

Other Ruets 
Computer Soflwares J 

T1ademarks 10 

The estimated useful life and amo11isation method are reviewed at lhe end of each repo1ling period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounled for on a 
prospective basis 

(d) De-recognition 
An intangible asset is derecogniscd on disposal, or when no future economic benefits me expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from derccognition of 1111 

intangible asset, measu1cd as the difference between the net disposal p1oceeds and the can)'ing amount of the asset, are recognised ir, the Condensed Consolidated 
Statement of P1ofit and Loss when lhc asset is derccogniscd 

3.4 Investment properly 
(n) Recognition 111u.l 111e11!111rement 

Properties including land, building and other assets, which ere held eilher fo1 long-term I erllal yield or for capital app1 ccialion or for both, and which are not occupied 
substantially by Mindspece Business Pai ks Group are classified as investment property 
Investment properties fire initially recognised at cost, including 1clated transaction costs Subsequent to initial recognition, investment proper lies are measured in accordance 
with lhe requirement of Ind AS l 61s requi1cme11ts for cost model i,e Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any . Dep,eciation is cluuged when the investment 
p1opcrty is ready fo1· its intended use Cost comp, ises of di1ect expenses like land cost, site labou, cost, mate, ial used fo1 project construction, p1ojcct management 
con:rnllancy, costs for moving the plant and machinety to the site and general expenses incwred specifically for the 1especlive project like insurance, design and technical 
assistance, and construction overheads a, c allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the pr ojecl 
Plant and machinery, furnitu1e and ftxtu1cs, office equipment and elect,ical equipments which are physicRlly attached to tht comme,cial buildings a,e considc1ed as part of 
mvestment property. 
Acquisitions and disposAls arc accounted for at the date of completion of acquisitions and disposals 

(b) Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequenl expenditme is capitalised to the asset's Cfurying amount only when it is probable that futuJ'e economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to 
Mindspacc Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred 

(c) Depreclntion / Amortisation 
Depreciation/ amortisation is provided using straight line method as pe1 the usefol life of the assets estimated by the mana~cment over the balance useful life The estimated 
useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule lI of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table below 
Depreciation on addition/ deletion of investment property made during the year is provi ded on pro-rnta basis from/ to the date of such addition/ deletion. 

Asset group 
Estimntcd Useful Life 

(in yenrs) 

Riuhl Jo = -r .easehoW land Ilalance l.easi: 1.01 m 
Buildinl!S' 75/90 

Infrastructure and develonm011 JS 
Roadwork• 15 

Planl and maobinerv I 5 
Oftice equioment• 4 
Purnitu1 e and fixtures• 7 
Elect1 ical installation• 15 

• Fo1 these class of assets, bc1sed on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is approp1iate which is different than those prescribed under 
Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 20 I J 

Based on internal assessment the managemcnl believes the 1esidual value of all assets is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those respective assets, 

Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully \vr itten off in the year of acquisition 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method arc reviewed et the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation 

accounted for on a prospective basi:; 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Con£olid11tcd ft'innnci11I Slnlcmcnl.s 
Notes to Accounts 
(All nmount.s nrc in Rs. million unle!l.s otherwise stated) 

(u) Fnir Ynluo 
Fai1 value or invcstri1c11t p1 opc1 ty is based 011 a valuntion by an 111de1Je11Jcnl va1L1er who holds a ret·ogniscd and relevant p1 ofessional qualification and has recent cxpc, iencc 
111 lhe locat10n and t:iltegory of the investment pl'Ope1ty being \ah1ed The foir valu~ of investmenl property 1s Jisclosed in 1h~ Slaternenl of Net assets ill Fair Value 

(c) Dc~rccognilion 

An investmcnl propc1ty is derecognizcd upon disposal or when the investment prope1ty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected 
from the disposal Any gain or loss mising on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference belween lhe nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) 1s included in lhc Condensed Consolidated Slatemenl of Profit and Loss in lhe period in which the p1operty is de-recognised 

(I) Investment properties under construction 

P1operty thal is being co11st1uctcd for fulu1e use as inveslmenl properly is 11.ccol11tled for as investment properly under construction until assels are ready for theii intended 
llSe 

Direct expenses like l,rnd cost, site labou1 cost, material used fo1 p1oject const1uctio11, project management consultancy, costs fo1 moving the planl and machinery lo lhe site 
and ~cneral expenses incurred spccitically for the respecti ve project like insurance, de.sign and technical assistance, and const1uct1011 overheads a,e taken as the cost of the 
ptOJC'C.:l 

I 11 vestment prnper't1es under co11st1 ucllon represent the cost 1ncun ed 111 1 cspect of areas under consLrucl1011 of the real estate development p1 oj eels less impai, mcnl losses, if 
;my 

Advance paid for acquisition of investment prope1ty which me nol ready for l11cir intended use RI each balnnce sheet date u1·e disclosed undc1 othc1 non cuncnl nssets us 
cnp1tal advance 

J,5 lmpnirmcnt orH~scts 

Mindspace Business Pa1ks G1oup assesses at each bahmce sheet date, whether thc1e is any indication thal an asset may be impaired Jr any such indication exists. Minds1>ace 
O11sincss Pmkf G1011p estimates the recove1 able amount or the asset The recoverable amount of the assels (or where applicable that of the cash gc11e1ati11g uni I to which lhc 
nssct belongs) is estimated a!i the highe,-or its nel selling price and ils value in use Value in use is the p1esenl value of cstimf!led futu1c cash flows expected 10 a1 ise f1om the 
conti11uing use of the assets and from its disposal al the end of its useful life An impairment loss is ,ecognised whe11evc1 the ci,rrying amount of an asset or the cash­
ge11c1 ati11g unit to wl11ch 1t belongs, exceeds its recoverable 'lmount Impairment loss is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of l'1olil <1ml Loss 01 against 
1 cval11ation .;;urplus, where applicable 

When an impairment loss subsequently 1cvcr ses, lhc corrying amount of the assel (or a cash-~e1,erating unit) is increased to the 1cvised estimate of its recoverable mnount, 
hut so that the inc,eascd ca1ry111g nmount does not exceed the cairying amount that would have been dclenntned had no impamncnt loss been recognised for the asset (01 

cash-gene, at111g w11t) 111 p1 '°' years A I eve, sal of an imllflirmcnt loss is recognised immediately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit amJ Loss 

3.6 Hor·rowing CO.!llfi 

Bm ruw1ng cnsts lhat ttre all1 ibutablc lo the acql1isition, conslruction 01 production of C]llalifying ossets are treated as di1 ect cost and me considered as pm l of cost of such 
asscl~ 801rowi11g costs consist of i11tc1csl and other costs that an entity i11cu1s in connection wilh the borrowing of funds lnvestment income enrncd on the lempornry 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible fo1 capitalisalion A quali(ying 11ssel is rm 

asset that necessarily 1equi1c~ a substm1lial period of time to get 1eady for its intended use or sc1le 
Capi1ali:rnlio11 1 ate used tu determine the 11mou111 of bo1 rowing costs to be cflpitalised 1s the weighted averngl! interest I ate applicable to the gcnc1 al borrowings 
Capitalisation of ho11owing costs is suspended duling lhc extended pc,iod in which active development is mtcnuptcd Capitnlisation of bor1ow111g costs io; ccuscd when 
subst;mtiall~ all the ac11vitics 11eccs1uuy lo p1cparc lhe quali!)'ing asset fo1 its intended use or' sale are complete. 
,\II othc1 bo11owi11gcosts arc recognised ns nn expense 111 the period in which they are incu1red, 

Boirowing cost incurred bv the SPV.s on intcr-compnny loans is continued to he cupitalised only to the extent Min<lspace Group has incuncd cxlc111al bonowing cost 

3.7 Inventories 
(n) Mcusul"emenl ofiuventory 

lnvcnturic:; comprise of huifding malcrial and componcnls Conti actual wo1k in progress, i11 respect of thitd party cuslome1'S, is classified as work in prng,ess Mindspflcc 
Bus111~ss 1,,uks Group measures its inventories .it lhc lower of cost and nel realisable value, 

(b) Cost orlnvcntories 
The cost of i11vento1 ics at' l.,uilding matc1 ial and componcnls and work in p1 ogress comprise all custs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the invenlo1 ies to lheir 
prcs:ent location and condition Cost is determined on moving weighted aver age basis 

(c) Net rc11lis11hl~ vnlue 

Nt·t 1ealisnhle value is the c.stimate<l selling price in the ordina1y course of business, less cslllnated cosls of cvmpletion and estimated co.sis necessa1y to make the sale 

3.8 Revenue I ccugnition 

(n) Facility renlllls 
Revenue from property leased oul undc1 an opc1ating le11se is 1ecog11iscd over the lease le1m on a straight line basis, except whe1e there 1s ru1 uncertainty of ulli111ale 
collection 

(h) Mnlutcnnnce .!iervices 
Maitllenance 111come is recognised ove1 n period of time for services rendered to the customers 

(r) Revenue rrom power .rnpply 
Rcvt'.nuc from powc1 supply is accounled fo1 on the basis of billings lo consume1s and includes unbilled revenues accrncd up to lhc end of lhe accounting year Mi11ds1>ace 
Business Parks Group dctc1 mines su1 plus/deficit i c excess/ shortfall of aggregule ga111 over return on equ1ly entitlement for the period in tespecl of its operations based on 
the 11ri11c1ples h1id down unclc1 the 1cspectivc TmiIT Regulations as notiticd by Mahaiasht1a Elei.:tncily Regulutory Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order 
issued by 1t In respect of such su1plus/deficit, app1opriate adjustments as stipulated unde1 the regulations a1e made duiing the period Fu1thc1, anv adjustments lhat may 
arise on a1111uc1I pe1foimanc.:e review by the MERC under the lariff1eyulations is made c1fter the complelion of such review 

(d) FlnHnce Lcnsc 
For as.sets let out unde1 finance lease, Mindspace Dusi1mss Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount ~qual to the net investment in the lease Renlals received arc 
accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease paymenls receivable on finance leases are apportioned between lhe finance income and the 
1 eduction of the outstanding receivable The finance mcome al localed to e.ich period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 011 the 

1ema111i11g net invcslnicnt in the finance lease 
Contingent 1e11ts are reco1 cled as income in the pc1 iods in which they are earned 

(c) Snlc of,urplus construction mnterini Hnc.l scrnp 
Revcm1c f1om sale of surplus consl1 uction 111aterial is recognised on l1ansfer of I isk and rewards cf ownership which is genc1 ally on dispatch of male1 ial 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
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Condensed Consolidated Finnncit1l St11tcmcnts 
Notes to Accounts 

(All nmounts nrc in Rs, million trnless olhenvise stated) 

J,9 Rccognitim1 urdividenc.l income 1 interest income: 
(i) Dividend income is recognised in prnfil or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to 1cccivc payment is established 
(ii) interest income is recognised on lime proportion basis, by reference to the p1incipal outstanding nnd the effective interest ratt! applici.lble 

(iii) Delayed payment clu,rges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when the1e 1s unce1tc.1inty of ultimate collection 

3.10 Tux expense 

Income tax expense comprises current tnx and deferred Lax clrnrge or credil [tis 1ecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss excepl to the cxlenl that it 1elaLes to an item 
recognised directly in equity m in othe1 cornp1ehcns1vc income in which case, the cui'renl and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and uthe1 comprehensive income 
respccll vely 

(n) Current tnx 

Cull'cnl t.ix comprises the expected lax payable or 1•ecc1vablc on the taxable income or loss for the year and any at.Jjuslmcnt to the tax payablt.: 01 receivable in 1espcct of 
previous yea1s J'hc am~llmt of cm I cnt lax reflects tht.: best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid 01 received after cons1dcr1ng the l1nccrta1nty, if any, 1 elated to 
income taxes It 1s measured using tax rates (and tax l,1ws) c1rnc1ed 01 substantively enacted by end of1epmt111g µe11od 

(b) Dcfcrrc<l lux 

Dcl'c11cd tax assel/liahil1ty 1s 1ccogniscd nn tempmary d1ffc1enccs between the cariymg <1rnounts of assets and liabilities in the Co11de11scd Co11solid.1tcd Pinancial 
Statc-mcnls and tlie correspondmg lax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Defc1red tax assets and liabilities arc mcasu1ed that aie expected lo apply to the pe11od 
when the as~r,t is tcaliscd or the linhility is settled, usmg the lax rates and tax laws that have been enacted oi substantively enacted by the end of 1eporting pc1iod The 
111east1rement of deferred tax liabilities and assets I ctlects the tax consequences that would follow from the mannc1 in which Mi11dspace Business Pm ks G1 oup expects, al 
the end oJ'thc repor1ing pe1 iod, lo 1ccove1 or setllc the carrying mnuunl of ils assets and liabilities 
Deferred tax is not rncogn1scd f01: 
· Temporary d1ffere11ccs mising on the initial 1ccognition or c1sscts and liabilities in a t1a11snctio11 that is 1101 n bt1siness combination and that affects 11eithe1 flccounting 1101 
taxiJblc p1 o!H 01 loss ~l lhc time or lhc transaction; and 

Tcmpo1 c1ry differences I elnted to investments in subsidim 1es, associates, und joint a1 mngcmcnts to lhe extent tlrnt Mindsracc Business Park G10l1p 1s able to control the 
timmg of the rcv~rsal of the iemporary diffc1enccs and il is p1ohablc that they will nut 
1cvc1st:, 111 the fo1csecable futme, 

Dcfe11·cd tax linbili11es arc generally 1ccogniscd for all taxable temporary differences Dcfc11ed lax assets a1e generally 1ecog11iscd fo1 all deductible tempornry diffe1cnces to 
the extent th<1t it is prob,1ble llrnt tnxable p1oflls will be avnilablc <1gainst which those deductiblt: lcrnporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax dssets and ltabililies 
arc nut recognised if the lcr11po1ary <liffe1cnce c1rises /'iom the i11iL111I recognition (othc1 than i11 a business eombi11at1011) orasscls and liabilities in c1 transaction that affects 
11eithc1 the trnrnblc pr orit nor tht: <1ccounting p1 olll 

Th~ ca1rying amou11L or clcfc1 r cd l~x assets arc 1cvicwed ,,t the end of t!ilch I cpo1 ting pe1 iod mid I edl1ced lo the cxtenl that ii is no longer p1obublc that sufficient taxc1blc 
p1of1ts will be available to allow ,,11 01 purt of the asset to be 1ccovered 

Dcfc1rcd tax assets und liabilities ,i1e offset if the1e is a legally enforceable 1ight lo offset cur1e11t lax linbilities, mul Lhcy 1elate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
<1uthority 011 tile snrnc tuxablc c11lity, or on different tax entities, but lhc) 111tcnd to settle cur rent tax liabilities and assets 011 u nel has1s or thci1 t;.ix assets rind linbtl1tics will 
11c rcrd1sccl <;i111ullH11cously 

Frn opcrnlions ca11icd out under 1ax holiday pc1iod (SOJA benefits or Income TE1x Act, 1961), dcfcr1ed tc1x assets 01 linbilities, if any, have been eslablishcd fm lhc tax 
consequences of thnsc tcmpmm)' d1ffc1 cnces between the cm rying valu..:s 0f E1ssets nnd 
litibililics and their I cspcct1vc tax bases thal r evcrse c1fler the t0x holiday cndH 
/11 the s1tual1t)11s 1-viic1 e <me 01 murc units or the Group c1rc entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no del'eri ed tax (asset 01 

liability 1 15 ,·ccognized in respect ol tcmpormy differences which reverse during the tax holiday pe1 iod, to the extent the conce1 necl 
l111ir 1s g1 nss total income is :-a1bJecl to lhe deduction du1 ing lhc tc1x holiday pci 10d Deforrcd tax in I espect of tempo1c11)' diffc1 ences 
wl11ch ,cwrsc c11lel' the tax ho Iida} pc110d is recognized in the yea, in which the ternpmm)' differences originate l]owcve1, the 
Gioup 1esl1·icls recognition o( dcfc1rcd lax assets to the extent it 1s probable that sufticicnt futu1c taxable income will be available against which such dcfe11cd tax assets can 
Le 1calized, FOi 1ecogn1tiun of defoircd lflxes, the tempo1 my diffe1 ences which 011gi11ate firsl <lie considered to I eve15c fii st 

(r) Minimum Altcrnn(e Tnx (MAT) 
MAT cr~dit entitlement is 1ccognized H5 an assel only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that nmmal income tax will be pnid du1 ing the spccifie<l period . In 
the year in which MAT crcdil becomes eligible lo be 1ecognizcd as an asset, the said asset is crctited by way of a credit to the Condensed Consolidated Stc1Lement of Profit 
1:1J1d Loss am.I shown as MAT cred1l entitlemcnl unde1 dere11ed lnx asscls. This is reviewed at each br1lance sheet date and the ca1rying amount of MAT c1cdit enlitlemcnt 1s 
w1 illen down l'J th(' extent 1t 1s riot 1casonably certain that normal income ta>' will be paid during the specified period 

3.11 ~11r11i11gs per unit (EPU): 
The basic l!al nings pe1 1111il is cumputed by dividing the net pi otit/ (loss) att1 ibutablc lo the tmit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted c,verage numbc1 of units 
uutstandinH during the repo1 ting period The numbc1 of units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted ave1 age units considered for 
de11vi11g basic earnings/ (loss) pe1 unit and also the weighted avc1agc m1111ber of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units . 

Dih1tive potential units arc deemed co11vc1ted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued al a later date , In computing diluted earnings pe1 unit, 
01dy potential equity units that a1 c dilutive and which eilher I educes ea111ings pc1 unit or i11crease loss per units arc included 

J, 12 Provisions, contingent liubilities nn<l contingent nssels 
P1ovis1ons aie 1ecogniscd when Mindspacc Business Pa1ks Group has a p1•cscnt legul or const1uctive obligation as a result of a pasl event, it 1s probable that Mindspace 
Business Parks Group will he requi red to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate cun be made of the amount of the obligation 
The c1mounl rccog111se<l as a p1ovision is the best cstim<1le of the consideration 1cq11ired to settle the present obligation al the end of the 1epo1Ling period, toking into account 
the risks and uncc1ta111ties sunounding lhe obligation. P1ovisiuns are determined by discounting the expected future cnsh flows at a pre•tax 1atc that reflects current market 
assessments L'f lhc timt! value of money and the I isks specific to the liability The unwinding of the discount is I ecognised as finance cost 

C1111ti11gcnl l1ab1l1tics ai e disclose<l when there is a possible obligation or c1 present obligation that may, bl1t will probably not. 1equirc an outflow of 1·esm11 ces When there 1s 
a pos,;;ili1e obligation of a present obligation in 1espcct of which the likelihood of outflow of 1esou1ccs is remote, no p1 ovision 01 disclosure is m<1de 

A contingent asset is disclosed when thc1 c would be a possible ,1sset that mises ftom past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occu1 rence or 11011· 
cccurrence or one cir more uncertain futu re events nol wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Parks Group 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets arc reviewed al each Bc1lance Sheet date and adjusted to ret1ect the current best estimates 

3.13 Foreign currency lrunsnctions nn<l lrnnslutiou.s 
Transc1ctions <lenominated in foreign crnrency arc recorded at the cxclrnngc 1ate prevailing on the date of transactions Exchange differences <1rising on foreign exchange 
transactions settled dl1ring lhe ycai arc recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the yea1· 
Mo11clc1ry assels and liabilities denominated in fo1e1gn cunency winch a1e outstanding as al the year·end and not covered by forward contracts, arc t1anslatcd at the ye<1 r· 
end at the closing exchange rate ,md the resullanl exchange diffe1·e11ces arc recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Non·monetary foreign 
currency ilcms a1 e ca1 ricd c1t cost , 
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J,14 Leaues 
As a Lessor 
Mind space Business Pru ks Grnup enters into lease agreements as a lcssm wilh respect lo some of its investment properties 

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases Wheneve1 the terms of the lease tiansfcr substantially all the nsks 
and 1ewards ofownc1ship to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease All other leases ,-ire classified as operatmg leases 
\.\'hen Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lertsl! and lhe sublease as two separate contrncts The sublease is classified as a 
finance or operating lease by reference to the I ight-of-use asset a, 1sing from the head lease 
Rental Income ftom operating leases 1s I ecognised on a st, mght-line basis over the tel'm of the relevant lease, lrntial direct costs incuncd III negotiating and a11 anging an 
operating lease are added to the cm ryinH amount of the leased asset and recognised on a stia1ght-line basis over the lease term 
Amounts due f1om lessees under finance leases are recosniscd as 1ece1vables al the amounl ofMindspace Bl1siness Parks Grot1p1s net investment in the leases Finance lease 
income is allocated to 1epo1 ting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rnle of return on Mindspace Business Parks GrnL1p's nel investment Olllslanding 111 1 especl of Lhe 
leases 

As u Lessee 
Mmdspacc Business Parks Group assesses whether a contract ts or contains a lease, al inception of a contract Mindspace Business Parks G1oup 1ccogniscs a I igh1-of-use 
asset anJ a corresronding lease liability with respccl to all lec1se agreements in which it is the lessee, cxcepl for shorl-lc1 m leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 11 
months 01 less) am! leases of low v.ilue assels For these leases, Mindspacc Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lerm oflhc lease unless another systcmotic basis is mme rep1esentative of the time patlcrn in which economic benefits flam lhe leased asset me consL11ned 
l'l,c lc.ise liability is initially mc8su1cd at the p1 esent value of the lease payments that a1 c not paid at the comrnencemenl date, discounted by using the rate implicit 111 the 
lease If this 1atc cannot be 1eadily determined, Mindspacc Business Parks Group uses its inc1cmental borrowing rate. 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
• tixcd l~ase payments (incluJmg in~sub,;;tance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; 
• vnriable lease payments that depend Ofl an index or rate, inilially measmed using the index or rale at the commencement da1e; 
• the amount expected Lo be payable by the lessee under residual value guar.:intees; 
• payments ofpemdtics for 1er111in.iti11~ lhe lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise ofan option to terminate the lease, 

The lease liability ts p1esc11tcd as a sepmatc line in the condensed Consolidated balnnce sheet as Lec1se Liability 
The lease liability is subsequently mcasu1ed by incret1S1ng the carrying amnunl to 1etlccl interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by 1clh1<.:mg 
the c:iriying amount to I enect 1he lease payments made 
Mindspace Business Ptuks Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a c01rcsponding adjustment to the ,elated nght-of'.•use asset) whencve1 
• the lease term has changcJ ur there is a change in the asse~smenl of exercise of a pu .. chase option, in which cnse the lease liability i~ 1emeasmed by discounting the revised 
lease payments using a ,eviscd discount rate 
• the lease payments ch;,nge dL1e to changes in an index 01 1atc or a change in expected payment undc1 a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability 1s 
mcasu1ed by discounting the revised lease p,1yments l1sing the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which 
case a revised discount rate is u5ed). 
• a lease cont1act is modified and the lease modification 1s not accounted for as a sepatal{" lease, in which case the leose liability is remeasmed by discounl111g the 1cv1sed 
lease payments using a I cviscd J1scotml rate 

The nght~of-use assets comprise the initial measurement oithe eo11espon<ling lease liability, lease payments made at 01 before the commencement day and any initial dil'cct 
cost!; They arc subsequently measured al cost less accrnmtlated depreciation and impai1ment losses 
Whenever Mindspace Busi11ess Parks Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, 1esto1e the site on which it is locE1ted 01 resto•c the 
undcdying asset lo rhe condition requi1ed by the te1ms and conditions of the lease, a p1ovision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 'Prov1sio11s, Conli11gcr1L 
\.i1:1b1litic.~ and Contingent Assets' The costs are included in the related right-of-use c:1ssel, unless those costs are incur red to produce inventories 
Right-nf-11se assets are depreciated over the sho11er perit,d of lease tc1 m and useful life of the underlying asset 
Mindspnce Business Parks Ornup applies Ind AS 36 Impatrtncnl of Assets to determine whether a right~of-usc asset is impi1ircd c111d accounts fo r any identified impo1i1 mcnl 
loss as desc1ibed in Nole 3 4 
Variable 1c11ts th;1t do not depend on an index 01 tale are not mcluded in the measuicment the lease liability and the right-of~use as!'iel . The 1elatcd payments arc recognised 
~s an expense in the period in which Lhc event 01 condilion that l1 igge1 s those payrm:11ls occurs and arc included in the line ·• other expenses" in the Condc11sed C0nsolidmed 
Stuternenl of Profit and Loss 

3.IS Finnucinl instruments 
lnilinl recognition nml mcnsurement 
t.'itrnncial assets and/or financial liuhilities arc 1ecognisetl \1,,hen Mindspacc Business Parks G1oup becomes party to a conlrdcl embodying the related financial instn1ments 
All tinMcu,I assets. financial li.ibiiitics urc initially mca:;ured at fai1 value T1 anfnction ccsts that are altl ibutablc to the acquisition 01 is'iue of financial assets and tinanc,nl 
liabilities (other than tinan,;ii11 assets ano financial liabilities at fair value throu~h profit or loss) ere added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fai r value of such 
assets or linbilitics, on initial rccognit1011 Transaction costs directly att11bL1table Lo the ..icquisition of financial assets or financial lit1bihties al fai1 value through p1 ofil or loss 
arc t ccognised immediately i11 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
Fiunndnl usscls: 

(11) Clnssilicntion of linnncinl nsscls: 
Ii) Mi11dspi1ce Business Parks G10up classities ils financial assets in the following measurement catego l' tes: 

those to he mcasu,ed subsequently ;H fan value (eithe1 th1ough other comprehensive income, 01 through lhe Condensed Co1,solidatcd Statement of Pi-ofit and Loss), and 
- those mcasur.:d at amm tised cost. 

(i1) The clussification i~ done depending upon Mindspacc Business Parks Group1s business moJcl for managing lhe financial assets and lhe contractual terms oflhe c<1sh flows 

(iii) For investmcnls in debt 1nst1umc111s, this will depend 011 the business modd in which the investment is held 
(iv) Mu,Jspacc Business Paik~ G1oup reclassifies debt investments when and only when its b1_1sincss model for mannging those assets changes 
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(b) S11bseq11enl Measuremenl 

(i) Dehl instruments: 

Subsequent measurement of debl instruments depends on Mindspace Business Pai ks Grm1p1s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characleristics of lhc 
asset Thc1c are lh1ce measurement categories into which Mindspacc Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments: 

Finnnciol nsscls at amortised cosl 

Financial assets are subsequently mcasu1ed al amo1tised cost if these financial assets a1c held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order lo collect 
contractual cash flows and the conlractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilied dales to cash nows that a1c solely payments of p1incipal and interest on the 
p1 incipal amounl outstanding 
Finnncinl nssets nt fnir vnlne through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value lhrough other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash nows lhat give rise on specified dales lo solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling 
financial assets 

Finnncinl nssets nt fair value through the Condensed Consolldated Slnlem ent or Pro lit 11nd Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets are subsequently measu1ed at fair value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of P1ofit and Loss unless it is measured at arno11iscd cost 01 fair 
value through other comp1ehensive income on initial recognition The t1ansaction costs directly altributable to the acquisilion of financial assets and liabilities al fair value 
through p1 ofit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidc1led Statement of Profit and Loss 

(1i) Ec111ily instruments: 

Mindspace Business Pa,ks Group subsequently measures all equity investments cit Cair value, The1e a1e two measu1ement categories into which Mindspacc Business Pai ks 
Group classifies its equily inst1 uments: 

Investments in equity instruments nt FVTPL: 

lnvestmcnls in equily instrumenls a1e classified as al PVTPL, unless Mindspacc Business Parks Group i1revocably elecls on initial recognition lo present subsequent 
changes in fair value in olher comprehensive income for equity instrumcnls which arc not held for t1 ading, · 

Investments in equity instrnmenls nf FVTOCI: 

On inilial 1'ecognition, Mindspacc Business Porks Group can make an it revocable election (on an inst1umenl-by-inslrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair 
value in other comprehensive income This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held fo1 trading These elected investments are initially measured at fai1 value 
plus transaction cosls Subsequently, lhey arc rneasl1red al fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fail value 1ecognised in olher comprehensive income and 
accumulated in lhe reserve for 1equity inst1uments through other comp1ehensive income• The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Condensed Consolidcited 
Statemenl of Profil and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained earnings 

(c) lmpnlrment of finnncinl nssets: 

Mindspcice Business Parks Group applies the expected c1edit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measu1ed at amortised cost, lease 1cceivc1bles, 
t1ade receivflbles, olher cont1actual 1ighls to receive cash or other financial asset Por t1ade receivables, Mindspace Business Pru ks G1oup measures the loss allowance at an 
amount equal to lifetime expected c1edit losses, Further, fo1 lhe purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance fo1 t,ade 1eceivables, Mindspace Business 
Parks Group has used a ptactical expedient as pe1mitted under ltHJ AS 109 This expected c1edit loss allowance is computed based on a p1ovision matrix which takes into 
accounl histol'ical credit luss cxpe1 ience and adjusted fo1 fo1 ward-looking infm mation 

(d) Derecognitiun of fiiumcinl 11ssels: 

A financial assel is primarily Je1ecog11ised when: 
(i) the I ight to receive cash flows from lhc asset has expi1 ed, or 
(ii) Mindspace Business Pa1ks Group has t1ansfe1red its I ighls tu receive cash flows fiom the asset; and 

Mindspace Business Pmks Group has trnnsferred substantially all the 1isks and rewmds of the asset, OJ 

Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 1ewards of the assel, but has transfe1red conlrol of the asset 

On Jerecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity inslruments al FVOCI), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at lhe 
date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Any interest in transferred financial assets that 
is created or retained by the SPY is recognised as a separate asset or liability~ 

3 Fin11nci11I lh1bilities nnd equity instruments 

(n) Chtssificn1ion HS debt or equity 

Financial liabilities and equity inst1 uments issued by Mind space Business Parks Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements enlered inlo 
and lhe definitions ofa financial liability and an equity instrument. 

(b) Equity instruments 

An equily instrumenl is any contract that evidences a residual interesl in the assets of Mindspace Business Pai ks Group afte1 deducting all of its liabilities, Equily 
inst1uments are reco1ded al the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, 
Repurchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity No gain 01 loss is 1ecognised in the Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the pu1 chase, sale, issue 01 c.inccllation of Mindspace Business Pai ks G1 oup1s own equity instrumenls 

(c) Compound finnncinl instruments 

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspacc Business Pa1ks Grm1p arc classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance 
with the substance of the contractual a1rangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument, A conversion option that will be settled by the 
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mind space Business Pwks Grm1p1s own equity instruments is an equity inst1 ument 

Al the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest I ale for similar non-convertible instruments This amount is 
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date 

The conversion oplion classified as equity is determined by deducling the amount of the liabilily component from the fair value of the compound inst1 ument as a whole This 
is recognised c1nd included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured , 
Transaction costs thal 1elate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liabilily and equity components in p1oportion to the allocation of the g1oss 
proceeds T1ansaction costs ,elating lo lhe equity component are recognised directly in equity Transaclion costs relating to the liability component are included in the 
carrying amount oflhe liability componenl and a1e amortised over the lives oflhe convertible instrument using the effective interest method 
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(d) Financial Liabilities 

Rccognilion 1 measurement nnd cl1usincation 

Financial liabilities are classified as either held al a) fair value th1ough the Condensed Consolidated Statement of P1ofit and Loss, orb) at amortised cosl Management 
determines the ch1ssificat1on of its linancial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassifo.:ation 

M indspace Business Pru ks Group's financial liabilities include t1acJe and olher payables, loans and boi ruwmgs and derivative financial instl'uments Subsequent measurement 
of financial l1abil1Lies depends on their classification as fai1 value lhrough lhe Condensed Consolidaled Sta.temenl of Profit and Loss or at amortized cosl All changes in fair 
value of f1nanc1al liabilities classilled as FVTPL arc recognized in the Condensed Consolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss Amortised cosl category is applicable lo loans 
and borrowing!i, lrade and olhe1 payables After initial rccog11it1u11 Lhe financial liabilities are measured al amortised cost using the Effecl1ve Inte1esl Rate method 

Derecognition 

A fma11cial liability is de1ccog11izc<l whe11 the obligation undc1 the liability is dischar·ged or cancelled or expi1es Gains and losses a1e recognized in the Condensed 
Consolidaled Stateme1

1
1l of Profit and Loss when the liabililies are dereco,g111zed 

OffseUing ol linunci11I instruments 

F111a11cial assets and financial liabilities me offset .ind presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a cu1rently enforcenble leg.ii right to offset the 1ecognised 
mnounts and 1bere is an intention eilhc1 to settle on a net basis 01 lo 1ealisc the assets and settle the li..ibilities simultaneously 

3.16 Cash nnd cm1h equivnlents 

Cash Hnd cash equivalents comprises of cash Ell bnnks ,:md on hand, demand deposits, other short-te1m, highly liquid investments with original matu1 ilies of tlu ce months rn 
less that are readily convertible lo known amounts of cash and which are subject lo an insignificanl risk of changes in value 

3.17 Stntem enl of Cnsh now 

Cash llow i3 reported usmg the indirecl method, whcr eby net profit before lax is adjusled for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any defer I als 01 acc1 uals of 
pasl or future cash receipts or payments The cash nows from ope1 ating, investing and financing 1tclivities of Mindspace Business Parks Group a, e segregnted 

Fur the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Stc1lemcnl of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and sho1 Herm deposils, c1s defined above, net of 
m1lstanding bJnk overdrafts <1s they are considered an inlegral part ofMindspacc Business Parks Group's cash management 

As per pa1a 8 of Ind AS 7 "where bank overd1afts which arc repayable on demand fo1m an inlegral part ofan entity's cash management, bank ove1drafls a1c included as a 
co111po11en1 of cash and cash eqUlvalcnts Bank ovc1•dran, 111 the Condcnsc<l Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as 'borrowings' under Financi;ctl Liabilities 

J.18 Employee benefits phm 

Disclosure pul'suanf to Ind AS- 19 1 Employce benefits' 

(1) Short term employee benefits 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 1endering the se1vice are ela-;sificd as shoit-tetm employee benefits such as salaries, wages, etc and are 
rccog111sed 111 the yea1 in which the employee ren<lerecl the I elated services The undiscountecl amount of shor t-tcnn employee benefits expected to be paid 111 ~xchange for 
the se1 vice~ rendered by employees is recognised as nn expense dL11 ing the year 

(2) Long term em pluycc bcnelils 

Dclincd cuntrlbution pluns 

Conlribul1011s lo defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are cha1·ged ns an expense based on the amounl of cont1ibution required to be made as und wlwn 
~e1v1ces me rendc1ed by lhc employees Mindspace Business Parks Group1s p1ovidcnl fund cont1ibution, in respect of certain employees, is made Lo a govc111ment 
c1d111iniste1 cd l'L111cl and chm ged as an expense, The above benefits are classified as defined cont1 ibution schemes as Mindspace Business Pai ks G1oup has no fu1tht'1 (kftnct.l 
obl1gutions beyond the monthly contr1but1011s 
Defined benelit plnn 

M1ndspace Business Parks Group's g1 aluily benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspaee Business Parks Group has determined the g1 atuity liability based on inte1 nal 
cc1lc11lat1011 based on the number of years completed and last d1awn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment ofGrnluity Act, 1972 The liability or asset recognised in the 
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit g1-atuity plans is the present value of the defined benefil obligation et lhe end of' the reporting period less lhe fai r value of plan 
assets, it' any The defined benefit obligation is calcL1latcd annutilly by actuaries/ SPVs using the p1 ojecled unit credit method 
The pt esent value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by refe1 ence to market yields at the 
end of the I eporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the 1elated obligation . The net intc1·est cost is calcL1lated by applying the 
discount 1ate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of P1ofil and Loss 

Other long term cm ployce Lenelits - Com pcnsuted nbscnces 

Benf'tits under compensated absences a1 e accounted as othe1 lo11B-te1 m employee benefits, Mindspace Business Pai ks Group has determined the liability fo1 compensated 
~bsences based 011 inlcrnal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave c1edited to employee's account and the last d1awn salary Mindspace Business Parks 
Group's net obligation in 1espect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned in return for lheir service in the 
current and previous years The benefit is discounted to dele1mine its present value The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation/ by SPVs using the 
p1ojccled unit c1edit method Remeasurement is 1ecog11ised in the Condensed Consolidated Stalernent of Profit and Loss 111 the period in which they arise Compensated 
absences which m'c not expected lo occu1 within twelve months aHer the end of the period in which the employee renders the related se1vices are recognised as a liability 

3,19 Sl11te1111\nt ofnetnssets nt f11irvnl11e 

Tht: disclosure of Statement of Net Assets al Fair Value comprises of the fai1 values of lhe real estalc assets and facility management business as well e.s book values of the 
total liabilities and other asscls of all SPVs consolidated The fair valL1e of the real estate assels and facility management business are reviewed regularly by the independent 
properly valuer taking into consideration market conditions existing at the reporting date, using ge11e1ally accepted market piact1ces The independenl valuer is leading 
independent appraiser wilh a recognised and relevant professional qualification and experience, Such independent appraisals are ca rried out on halfyeady basis 
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3.20 E11rnings before finnnce costll, dcprecintion nnd m11ortisation 1 regulatory Income/ expense ""J tnx 
Mindspace Business Parks Grour has clccled to present earnings before inte1est, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income I expense and lax as a separate line item 
on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement ur P1otil and Loss. Mindsp1:1ce l3usiness Pa1'k.s Group mcasl1res earnings before interest, dcprec1at1on and 
amortisation, regulatory income/ expense and tax on the basis of pr'otit/ (loss) fi om contim1ing operations 

J.21 Subsequent events 

The Condensed Consolidalcd Financial Stalements arc adjusted to reflccl events that occur afler the 1epo1ting date bul befo1e the Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements are issued The Condensed Consolidated Financial Stalements have thei1 own date of autho1 isation, which differs from that of the financial statements of the 
entities which are part ofMindspacc REIT group Therefme, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, management considers events up to the date 
of authonsation of these fimmc1al sta t('mcnts 

J.22 Erron 1111d cittinuttes 

Minclspace Business Pmks Group 1cv1ses tt s accounting policies if the change 1s rcqHi1ed due to a change in Ind AS or if the chm1ge will p1ovidc more 1elcvanl and 1elrnblc 
info1malion to the users ofthc Condc11scd ConsoliUated linr1ncictl statement Changes in accountin~ policies are Applied retrospec1ively 

A change in an accmmting estimate that tesu lts in changes in lhe carrying amounts of recognised assets or li.ibilitics 01 lo profit 01 loss is applied p1ospectively in the 
period(s) of change. 

Discovery ofc1rors 1esults in revisions 1etrospcctively by 1eslaling the cornparal1ve amounts of assets, liabilities and cql1ity of the earliest priot period in which the c11or 1s 
~iscnve1ed The opening balances of the earliest pe1iod presented are also restated 

J.23 Non-cuntrulling inleresls 

Nl111-cor1tr,Jlltn~ intel'ests 1eprese11t the sha1c of reserves and capital attributable to the sha1eholders of the SPVs who have not agreed to exchange lhei1 sha1es in the SPVs 
fo1 t111itr of Mmdspace REl1 ' and will not become the unitholdcr s of Mindspacc REIT llelow is lhe I isl of sl1a1 eholdc1s of th!.! SPVs for· whom nun-cont1 oiling inte1esl has 
l:-":."c n rccog11iscd Non-controlling interests in the 1esults ,md equity of subsidimics are shown scprnalclv in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
Co11soltdc:1tcd Statcinenl of Cha,1ges in Equily and Balance Sheet respectively 

-srv Sltnreholdcr u/4 Holding llt SPV 
fA_, o n ........ orti11P dnt"l 

(.:J(('I' Andh1a Pradesh Industrial r11flast1uclme 11 .0% 
Corpo1 at ion Limited 

hlllrh(! Andhrn Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure 11 0% 
Co1pou.lllon l.irniled 

SunJcw Andlua Pi adesh lndust1 ial [nfrast1 uctu1 e 11 0% 
Corpo1ation Limited 

Ind AS 110 1equi1es entities to atl1 ibute the p1otit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income lo the owne1s of Mi11dsr,acc REIT and lo lhe 11011-contiolling 
interests This 1eql11rernenl 11..!cds tu be l'ollowed even if this results in the 11011-conllolling inlcrcsts having a deficit balance. 

J .24 Cu!ih di!i!trih11tic1n to unil hnlllcr.s 

1 ltc Cilllup 1cco~niscs a liability w nrnke cash distribulions lo lJnitholde1s when the distribution is autho1iscd and a legal obli~ation has been c1ealed As pe1 the REIT 
llc~ulatiom:, a d1sl1 ilmtiun 1s .1utho1 ised when it 1s appruved by the Uomd of Di,cclm s of the Manager A con csponding llmount is I ccugnised directly in equ ity 

J ,25 Dislribntion Polley 
The Net 1Jist1 ibutahle Cnsh rlmvs of Mindspncc: REIT arc based on the cEtsh !lows gcncrntcd fl om Mindspoce llEIT's assets uncl i11 vcstincnts 

In terms of the Dislr1butian Policy c111J the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SP Vs is I equired to be dis t1 ibutecl to M inJspnce REIT, in 
propo1t1on of their sha1cholding in till' Asset SPY, subject to npplicablc p1ovisions of the Comranics Act or the LLP Act Presently, NDCF to be 1cccived hy Minrlspace 
REIT liom the Asset SPVs may be 1n the loirn of dividends, inte1est income, principal loan repayment, p1oceeds of any capitol reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs, 
sale p1 oi.::ecJs out of dispos(II of' i11'Ji!Stmcnts if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT 01 as specifically permitted under the T1 ust Dec<l 01 in such other form as may 
bt: pe11n'iss1blc under the applicable law 

lhc Manager is 11equired to c111J r.hall decla1t: and distribute at least 90% of the NDCf of Mindspacc REIT as distributions ("REIT Distiihutions") to the Unitholders Such 
REIT Dist11b11l1ons shali be declared nnd made fo, every quarter ofa Pinancial Year 
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4 Pursuant to the share acqui sition agreements entered between Mindspace REIT., Sponsor Group and Blackstone Entiti es for acquisition of the shares of the Asset SPVs held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone Entities, 

the acquisition was effeLted on 30 July 2020 However, consolidation of the financials of these Assets SPVs has been done effective 1 August 2020 considering the impact of 1 day operation on the financial results is 
immaterial 

5 Property, plant and equipment 

Power assets i Other assets 

Right of use -

I 
I Plant and Electrical Temporary I Plant and I Electrical ~ffice I Com uters 

Furniture 
Total Pa rticu la rs Buildings and Leasehold Land machinery Installation Structure machinery Installation equipment p 

fixtures 
Gross block ( cost) I I I 
At 18 November 2019 - - - - I - - - - I - - -
Additions - - - - - I - - . - - -
Disposals - I - - I - I - - - - I - - . 
At 31 March 2020 - - - - - - I . . - - -
At 1 April 2020 - . - I - . - - - I - - . 
Additions due to Asset acquisition 1 467 7 11 150 301 32 5 1 15 1,683 
Additions during the period - I . - - . 19 1 - 0 o I 20 
Disposals - - - . . . - - . - . 
At 31 December 2020 1 467 711 1so I - 320 33 5 1 15 1,703 
Accumulated depreciation I 

At 18 November 2019 . - - - . - - . - . -
Charge for the year - I . . . - I . - . - . . 

, Disoos:tls . - . I . . - i . . . - . 
1 At 31 March 2020 . . - - . - ! . - - - -: 

At 1 April 2020 - I . - . - - I . . - - . 
Charge for the period - 3 27 5 . 92 1 4 0 11 143 

Disposals . I . I - . . I . I - I . - - -
At 31 December 2020 . I 3 27 5 - 92 1 4 0 11 143 

Carryin° amount (net) I 
At 31 March 2020 . I . . . - - I - - . - . 

At 31 December 2020 1 464 684 145 I . I 228 32 1 1 4 1,560 

Note - refer note 45 for Asset acquisition 

d\ 

~ 
" * l' 

2 1 
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(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

6 Investment property 

Particulars I Freehold Land 

Gross block ( cost or deemed cost) 

At 18 November 2019 -
Additions -
Disposals -
At 31 March 2020 -
As at 1 Aoril 2020 -
Additions due to Asset acquisition• 72,204 
Additions during the period -
Disoosals -
At 31 December 2020 72,204 

Accumulated amortisation 

At 18 November 2019 -
Charge for the year -I 
Disoosals -
At31 March 2020 -
As at 1 April 2020 l -
Chan,e for the oeriod I -I 
Disoosals -
At 31 December 2020 -
Canyinl!! amount (net) 
At 31 March 2020 -
At 31 December 2020 72,204 

Right of use -
Leasehold Land 

-I 
-
-
-I 
-I 

21,2641 

-I 
-1 

21,264! 

I 
-
-
-
-
-

201 

-
201 

-
21,063 

I Infrastructure 
Buildings and Roadwork 

development 

I 
-1 -I -
-I - -
-I -I -1 
-I _, -1 
-I - -

88,099 3.421 29 

6791 64 -
- - -

88,7781 3.485 29 

- -I -
- -I -
- -I -
- -I -I 

I 

- -I -
519 P3 J 0 

- - -
519 123 0 

I 
I 

- -I -
88.259 3.362 29 

"Reclassified leasehold land ofMBPPL (Airoli) amounting to Rs_ 2,124 million from Freehold land during the quarter 

7 Investment prooerty under construction 

Plant and 
machinery 

-
-
-
-
-

5,2141 

322 1 

-I 
5,5361 

--1 
-
-l 
-
-I 

2741 

-
274 

I 

-
5.262 

The breakup of investment property under construction comprises upcoming buildings in various parks. The SPV wise details are as follows . 

Particulars Asat 
31 December 2020 

MBPPL 
Gigaplex 

Sundew 
KRIT 
KRC Infra 
Avacado 
Horizonview 
Total 
Note - refer note 45 for Asset acquisition 

3,787 
8,293 

806 
875 

4,768 
125 

12 
18.666 

\ZlNs 
cf 

~\~ 
c~ S 

::-­
* 22 

Furniture Electrical I Total 
and fixtures installation 

- - ..j 
- - -I 
- - . 
- - -
- - -

70 888 1 191.189 

11 1 106 1.1821 
- - -

81 1 994 192.371 

-I - -
-I - -
- - . 

- - -
- - -

1] 34 1.163 
- - -

12 34 1,163 

- - -
691 960 191.208 
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8 Intangible assets 

I Particulars Trademarks 

I Gross block 
' 

At 18 November 2019 
Additions 
Disposals 
As at 31 March 2020 

As at 1 April 2020 
Additions due to Asset acauisition * 
DiSJJOSalS 
At 31 December 2020 

' 
Accumulated amortisation 
At 18 November 2019 
Cha""e for the year 
Disposals 
As at 31 March 2020 I 
As at 1 April 2020 
Charge for the period 
Disposals 
At 31 December 2020 

Carrvin" amount (net) 
At 31 March 2020 

' At 31 December 2020 

-
-
-
-

-
I 

1 

-
-
-
. 

. 

0 
. 

0 

-
1 

mcludes trademark and computer softwares (less than Rs 0.5 million) 

Note - refer note 45 for Asset acquisition 

"'~~*sl<! Ns cf% 
1-- r Eli r 
~ ACC ~S 0 o> ;-..._ 
~ l' 

Q * 
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Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

9 Investment 
Particulars 

Financial assets 
Investments in equity instruments 
Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI 
2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs IO each fully 
paid-up (31 March 2020 : Nil) 

Investment in Government Securities at nmortised cost 
25.000 7.61 % 'Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 

25,000 8.24% 0012027 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), (31 March 2020: Nil) 
25,000 7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 

22,000 7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 

22,000 7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 

10,000 7.72% GOl 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 
18,000 7.26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 
28 1700 7.40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 

Investments mensured at cost (gross) 
Investments mensured nt fair vnlue through profit or loss 
Investments measured nt fair value through other comprehensive income 
Investments measured at nmortised cost 
Aggregnte nmount of Impairment recognised 

24 

As at 
31 December 2020 

0 

3 

3 
2 

2 

2 

2 
3 
18 

0 
18 

As at 
31 March 2020 
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10 Ocher fin1111Ci9l 11 sscb (Non current) 
Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Fixed deposits with banks 
Unbilled revenue 
Finance lease receivable 
Security deposits for development rights 
Security deposits 
Other receivables 

11 Deferred tax as~cts (url) 
Particulars 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

12 Non-current tax assets (nr l) 
P11rlil'll l11 rs 

Ad once rnx (net Clf pro1•isio11 fo1· t11xl 

13 Other non-current assets 

Particulars 

U1uecured, consi<lered good 
Capital advances 
Balances with government authorities 
l'rcpu1d expenses 

14 l111•r11iorics (1•nluc1l nl low~r of Ml 111111 nl'I rcnlisnhltl value) 

Particulars 

Building materials and components 

15 Trade receivables 
Particulars 

Unsecured 
Considered good 
Credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

25 

Asat As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

320 
478 
347 

6 
504 

14 

1,669 

As at As al 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

1,709 

1,709 

As at s at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

1,359 
1,359 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

695 
29 
22 

1,046 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

44 
44 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

242 
69 

(69) 
242 
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16 A Cash and cash equivalents 

Pnrtlculars 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

2 

- in current accounts 3,05 I 0 
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 

three months 

16 B Other bank balances 
Particulars 

Fixed deposits with maturity remaining upto twelve 
months* 

584 
3,637 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

210 
210 

•Includes fixed deposits with banks held as lien against loan availed lo support debt servicing and bank guarantees 

17 Other finandal 11_s_sets 

Pnrticulars 

Unsec11re,I, consitlere1/ goo,/ 
Interest receivable 

- on fixed deposits 
Interest accrued but not due 

- on other deposits 
- from others 

Security deposit for development rights 
Security deposits 
Unbilled revenue 
l'inance lease receivable 
Other receivables 

- Considered good 
- Credit impaired 

Less: loss allowance 

18 Other current finnncial assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, consitlered good 
Deposit/ advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 
Balances with government authorities 
Prepaid expenses 

19 Regulatory deferral accounts 
Particulars 

Regqlatorv assets 

Regulatory liabilities 

26 

As Rt 
31 December 2020 

As at 

7 
34 
60 
22 

485 
132 

68 
I 

(I) 

R09 

31 December 2020 

As at 

IOI 
214 
312 
627 

31 December 2020 

164 
164 

32 
32 

As at 
31 March 2020 

As at 
31 March 2020 

As at 
31 March 2020 

0 
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20 Corpus 

Coruus 
As at 18 November 2020 
Corous received during the oeriod• 
As al 3 I March 2020 
As at I April 2020 
Additions durinJi the period 
Closinl! balance as at 31 December 2020 
• Corpus received during the penod Rs I 0,000 (Rupees Ten Thousand only) 

21 Unit Capital 

A. Unit Cauital 
As at 18 November 2020 
Uni ls issued during the vear 
As at 31 March 2020 
As at I April 2020 
Units issued during the year 

- pursuant to the initial public offer, issued, subscribed and fully 
naid-un in cash (refer note a / ii) below I 

- in exchan1te for equity interest in Sl'Vs (refer note a (iii) below) 
Less: Issue expenses 
Closin~ balnnce as at 31 Decent bcr 2020 ' 

Amount 

-
0 
0 
0 

-
0 

No. Amount 

-
- -

-

36 363 ,600 10.000 
556 654.582 153 080 

- (241) 
593 018,182 162 839 

Note: Issue expenses pertaining to the Initial Public Offering (IPO) and listing of the units on the National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock 
Exchange have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. 

(n) Terms/rights attached to Units 

(h) 

(c) 

(i) Mindspace REIT has only one cla~s of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in Mindspace F EIT Each holder ot Units 1s entitled 
to one vote per uni I The Unitholders have the right to 1eceive at least 90% or the Net Distributable Cash Flows or Mindspace REIT at leas1. once in 
every six months in each financial year in accordance with the REIT Regulations The Governing Board of the Manager approves dividend 
distributions. The distribution will he in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholdcrs, Mindspace REIT Jcclarc, and pays dividends in 
lnJian Rupees 

Under lhc p1ovisions or the REIT Regulations. Mindspacc REIT is required to distribute tC1 Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net 
Jistributable cash !lows or Minds pace REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the unitholde,s' funds contains a contracrual obligation 
ofMindpsace REIT lo pay to its unitholders cash distributions. The Unitholdcrs ' funds could have been classilied as compound financial instrument 
wh ich contain both equity and li ability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation However, in accordance with 
SEBI Ci1culars (No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/ 141 /2016 dated 26 December 2016) issued under the 
REIT Regulations, the unitholdcrs ' funds have been classified as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirements of Section Hof Annexure 
A to the SEBI cicular C!R/IMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line 
with the above, the dividend payable to unit holders is recognised as liability when the same is approved by the Governing Board of the Manager 

(ii) Imtial Public Offering of 3,63,63,600 Uni ls for cash at price of Rs. 275 per Unit aggregating to Rs. 10,000 million. 

(iii) Mindspace REIT has acquired the SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone Entities in the SPVs. The 
acquisition of equity interest in the SPVs has been done by issue uf55 ,66,54,582 Units of Rs. 275 each as per the table below 

Avacado 
Horizonview 
KRC Infra 
Gigaplex 
Intime 
Sundew 
KRIT 
Mindspace 

N,1mc of the SPY 

Total number of Units issued 

Unitholders holdin1t more than 5 11crcc11t Units In Lhc 'l'rnst 
Name of the unitholdcr 

BREI' ASIA SG PEARi . HOLDING (NQ) PTE LTD 

Number of Units Hllotted for acquiring equity interest 
held by Sponsor GrouJl and Blnckstonc entities in 

SPVs 

Sponsor grouJl Blnckstonc Total 
Entities 

29,304,371 5,171,359 34,475,730 
364 64 428 

21,224,693 3,745,522 24,970,215 
47,334,745 372,113 47,706,858 
46,789,935 9,484,426 56,274,361 

101,943,753 20,664,275 I 22,608,028 
77,443,859 15,698,080 93, 141 ,939 

1501855,36 I 26,621,6()2 177,477,023 
474,897,081 81,757,501 556,654,582 

As nt 31 December 2020 
No of Units '1/,, holdine 

54,291,425 9.16'½, 

1 he Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the 
balance sheet date. Further the 1'1 ust has not issued any units for consideration other than cash from the dale of incorporation · 
date. except as disclosed above 
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22 Othu E uitv* 
Particulars 

Reserves 1111d Surplus 
Retained earnings 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

1,878 (49) 

1,878 (49) 

*Reier Consolidated Stalcmcnt or changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movernenl in olher equity balances. 

Retained earnings : 
The cu111ulaLive gain or loss arising frnm the opcralio11s which is retained and is recognized and accu111ulaled under lhc heading of rclained earnings. /\! 
lhc end of the period. the pr0ril aflcr lax is transferred frrnn the slalcmcnl or prnfil and loss to the retained earnings accounl. 

23 Borrowings 

Parlirulnrs 

Secured 

Terms loans 
- from banks/ financial insli!ulions 

Debentures 

IO year G-Scc linked scclll'ed, I isled, guaranteed. senior. lmrnblc, 11011-
cumulalivc. rated, principal prolcclcd - market linked, redeemable. 11011 
convertible debentures ('·Markel Linked Debentures / MLD") (net of 
issue expenses, al amortised cosl) (31 March 2020: Nil) (refer Note i) 

Secu1cd. listed, senior taxable, no11-c1111rulalive, rated, redeemable non­
converlible debentures (NCD Series I) (nel or issue expenses. al 
a111orlised cost) (31 March 2020: Nil) (rc1cr Nole ii) 

As at As at 
31 December 2020 31 :\'larTh 2020 

24,372 

4.974 

1,979 

31,325 

(i) During the nine 111011ths ended 31 Dccc:111bcr 2020, Mindspacc RUT issued 5,000 IO year G-Scc linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, lmrnble, 11011-
cu111ulalivc. rated, princip~I proleclcd- 1rnukcl li11kcd, rede,:mabk, 11011-co11verliblc debentures ("'Ma1kel Linked Debentures/ MLD"J having f'ace value 
or Rs. I 0,00.000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) eilch, amo11nt111g to Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees five hundred crores only). The lenurc of the said MLD is 577 
days from 29 September 2020, being dnte of allotmcnl of the Markel Linked Debentures and coupon, if m1y shall. he payable 011 the Scheduled 
Redemption Dale i.e. 011 maturity 011 29 April 2022. The cour,011 payoff structure is linked to condition where lhc payoff will be fixed on Lhc final fixing 
date i.e 30 Mar'ch 2022. If idenlil1ed 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing dale is greater than 25% of ils last traded price as 011 initial 
lixing date i.e. 29 September 2020, the coupon rate will be 6.80% p.a If identified 10 year G-See's last traded price as 011 final fixing date is less than 
or equal to 25% of its last lraded price as 011 initial fixing dale, the coupon rale will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of 
these MLDs, the probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identified IO year G-Sec on final fixing date being less lhan or equal to 
25% of its last lradcd price 011 initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the oplion considered as zero. This MLD was listed on BSE Limited 
on 13 October 2020. 

(ii) 

Security terms 
The Market Linked D~benlures arc ~ecurcd hy each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the 

Dcbcnlurc Holders): 
a) l'irsl and exclusive charge is registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising ther·efrom) on the aggregate leasable area 
of approximately 974,500 Sq Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no 6, 7 and 8 ofCommerzonc Yerawada (approx. 178,569 sq ft. in building no. 6. 
approx , 371,799 sq. ft . in :iuilding 110 7 and approx. 424,132 in building no, 8) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and 
interest in the notionally dcmar;;aled land admeasuring approximately 25 ,3 13 sq 111trs on which the said three building no. 6, 7 and 8, out of all 
those pieces and parcels of 1:,rgcr land ar~ situale. lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Havdi , District Punc ("Mortgaged Properties"). 

b) A charge is registered on the escrow account in which receivables oflhe Mortgaged Properties ofMBPPL shall be received. 
c) Corporate guarantee executed by MrlPPL. 

Redemption terms: 
a) These debentures are redccnrnbh: by way of bullel payment al lhe end of 577 days fro111 the dale of allotment, i.e. 29 April 2022, 
b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch d0w11gradc in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded aller any 
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be d()creased by 25 bps for each upgrade The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD if the rating is 
downgraded to A+. 
c) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Truslce may, by issuing no! less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to the issuer 
require the Issuer lo redeem in full (or as the case may be, in parl), all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to lhe total mandatory 
redemption amount in respect of each Debenture. 

During the quarter ended JI December 2020, Mindspa·:c Business Parks REIT ('Trust") issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, laxabll'. non-cumulative. 
ral~d, redeemable, non-converliblc dehenlures ('''\JCD'.) having face value of Rs. I 0,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amo1111t111g to R,. 
200,00,00,000 (Rupees two hu11dred crores only) wilh a coupon rate of 6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from lhe end of fir· · · 
the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment on Lhe scheduled redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023 ,¢'i.~Ji 

-~--NCO is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being dale of allotment.This NCO was listed on BSE Limited on 18 December 2 '-

\'>-sKINs ~ 
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Sccu rily terms 
The NCDs arc secured by each or the following security in favour or the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCO Holders): 
a) Firs( and exclusive charge being registered by way or simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area 
of approximately 414,599 Sq Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. I and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq rt, in building no I and 
approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the propo1 lionate undivided right, Ii lie and interest in the notionally demarcated land 
admeasuring approximately 18,2 64.86 sq , mlrs on which !he said two building no. I and 5, oul of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that arc 
situated, lying and being in Village Ycrawada, Taluka Haveli , Disll icl Punc ("Mortgaged !'ropc1 lies"), 

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables oflhe tvhrtgagcd Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenanr•' 
charges payable lo MBBPL with res peel lo the maintenance of tJ, , mortgaged properties shall be registered, • 

c) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPl'L. 

Redemption terms: 
a) These debentures arc redeemable by way of bullet repayment al the end of 36 months from the date or allotment, i.c 16 December 2023 
b) Interest is payable on the last day or each l'i1rnncial quarter in a year (starling fro111 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption dale 
c) The Coupon shall be increascu by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded aner any 
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. . 
d) Upon occurrence of a 111andalory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less limn 30 (thirty) business days' notice lo !he Issuer 
requi1e the Issuer lo redeem in full (or as the case may be, in part) , all the NCDs then outstanding by paying an amount equal lo the tolalJnandatory 
redemption amount in respect of each NCD. 

c) Details or disclosure roqui1ed as tier SF.Bl circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 Anrl l 2018 are as follows . 

Particulars 
Sccu recl/lJ 11sec u red Previous cine Next due 

dale elate 
Secured by way of a charge in the nature Principle - Nol Principle - On 
of registered simple mortgage Oil the Applicable Maturity 

IO year G-Scc linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non- idenlii'ied properties or Mindspacc 

cumulative, 1 alcd, p1 incipal p1 olecled - market linked, redeemable, non- Business Parks Private Lin;itcd, being one Interest - Not Interest - On 
convertible debentures ("Mmkel Linked Debentures/ MLD") of the SPVs of the Issuer and charge_ on Applicl)ble Maturity 

the escrow account in which receivables 
or the Mortgaged Properties shall he 
received . 

Secured by way of a charge in the nature Principle - Nol Principle - Not 
of registered simple mortgage Oil the Applicable Applicable 
identilied properties or MBPl'L, being 
one or the SPVs or the Issue, and charge Interest - Not Interest - 31 

Secured, lisleu, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeenrnble non- on the escrow account in which cashflows Applicable March, 2021 
convertible debentures (NCO Series I) and receivables ( except any common area 

maintenance charges) of the Mortgaged 
Properties shall be received 

5. Rating agency CRISI L has assigned a rating or "AAA/Stable" and "CRISIL PP-MLD AAAr/Stable" to the NCDs and Market Linked Debentures of 
the issuer / Mindspace REIT, 

Other requirements as per SEBI circular (No SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018) for issuance of debt securities by Real 
Estate Investment Trusts (R EITs) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (lnvlTsJ. 
Paritculars For the nine months ended 

31 December 2020 
Security/ Asset cover (MLDs) (refer a below) 2.28 times 
Security/ Asset cover (NCDs) (re(er b below) 2.29 times 
Debt-equity ratio (refor c below) 0.21 
Debt-service coverage ratio (refer d below) I.Mi 
Interest-service coverage ratio (refer e below) 4.88 
Net worth (refer f below) 1,73.930 
Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed consolidated financial statements (including non-controlling interest) :-
a) Security/ Asset cover ratio (MLDs) = Fair value of the secured assets as on 31 August 2020 as computed by independent valuers/ (Outstanding 
principal amount of MLDs + Interest accrued thereon) 
b) Security/ Asset cover ratio (NCDs) = Lower of Fair value of the secured assets as on 30 November 2020 as computeq by lwo indep_endent valuers/ 

(Outstanding principal amount ofNCDs + Interest accrued thereon) • 
c) Debt equity ratio= Borrowings/ Total equity 
d) Debt Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax/ (Interest expenses+ Principal repayments made during the period*) 

e) Interest Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax / (Interest expenses) 
1) Net worth= Total equity 

Borrowings= Non current borrowings+ Current borrowings+ Current maturities of long-term borrowings+ Interest acer 
• Excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings. 
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24 Other 11111111 iu l llnbillllc, 
Particulars As at As at 

31 Deccm her 2020 31 March 2020 

Security dcp,1siL~ 2,032 
Retention money Payable 

- due to micro and small enterprises 66 
- others 106 

Interest Accrued but not due on debentures 89 
Lease liabilities 181 

2,474 

25 l' rovi,~lon~ 

Particulars As at A.~ at 
31 Decem her 2020 31 Mn rch 2020 

Provision for employee benefits 
- gratuity 21 
- comeensated absences 14 

35 

26 Deferred inx llobilhlc,, (net! 
Pn rticu la rs As at As at 

31 December 2020 31 Mnrch 2020 

Deferred tnx linbill(lc~ {ncl} 166 
166 

27 Other non-current liabilities 
Pnrtlculnrs As nt As nt 

3 I Decem her 2020 31 March 2020 

Unearned rent 406 
Other advance 9 

415 

28 Borrowings (Current) 

Pn rticu la rs As Al As nt 
31 December 2020 31 Mnrch 2020 

Secured: 
Lonn~ renavable on demand 

- o\'erdraft from banks 2.483 

2,483 
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29 Trade myn hlc.s 
l'11rtlcnl111·5 

Trade Payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
- total outstandmg dues or cred itors other than micro enterprises 
nncl smnll emerpnses 

30 Oth er fi1111nclnl llnhllltlc.~ ( urrcnt ) 
Pa rticu IH rs 

Current maturities of long-term debt 
- from banks/ financial institutions/ non convertible debentures 

Employees dues payable 
Interest accrued but not due on loans from 

- banks/ financial institutions 
- debenture 
- others 

Interest accrued and due 
Security deposits 
Retention dues payable 

- due to micro and small enterprises 
- others 

Book overdraft 
Capital creditors 

Other than body corporates 
- Due to micro and small enterprises 
-Others 

Lease liabilities 
Other liabilites• 
Ll11billly rownrds dudv1u{vcs ~• 11 1r11 I 

As HI .,11t 

31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

57 

786 
843 

As Ht As HI 
31 December 2020 31 MHrch 2020 

2,572 
0 

62 
6 

20 
53 

5,414 

107 
123 

3 

407 
1,424 

19 
128 49 

10,338 49 

• Includes expenses of Rs.24 millions incurred by the Manager on behalf of Minds pace REIT. 

31 Provisions (Cttrrcnt) 
Particulus 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 25 above) 
-gratuity 
- compensated absences 

Provision f'or tu~ (not of ntlv!111cc In~ & In~ deducted ~t soun:c) 

32 Orhcr cur,·1111111:ihlllllc. 

PHrticulars 

Unearned rent 
Advances received from customers 
Statutory dues 
Other advances 
Other a able 

As RI As at 
31 December 2020 31 March 2020 

As at 

2 

14 
16 

3 I Dccem ber 2020 

31 

231 
375 
279 

5 
44 

934 

As at 
31 March 2020 
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33 Htvonur. from o ,ar 11i111u 
Particulars P'or lh c quarter For the qunrter For the nine months From From 

ended ended ended 18 November 2019 l8 November 2019 

31 Decem her 2020 JO Septem her 2020 31 Decem her 2020 to to 
JI Decem her 2020 31 Mnrch2020 

Snlc of services 
Facility rentals 3,415 2 ,190 5,605 

Mai11tenance services 601 400 1,001 

Revenue from works conlracl services 138 68 206 

Revenue from power supply 123 64 187 

Other opcrttting income 

lnle1est income from finance lease 24 14 38 

Sale of surplus const1uction material and scrap I I 2 

Sc1vice connection and other charges o 
Other operati.p income 

4 JOI 2 739 7 040 

34 hr, . .- t 
l111r1h·11l11r, For the qunrtcr For the qunrler For the nine months From P1·n111 

ended en Jed ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 
31 Dec em her 2020 JO Septem her 2020 JI Oecem her 2020 to to 

JI Dccem her 2020 31 M nrch 2020 

Interest income 
- loans given to body corpo1 oles 22 22 

- on fixed deposits 7 12 
• 011 declricity deposits 6 9 
- on Income-tax refunds 6 6 
• othcu I 2 

)4 37 SI 

JS Other Income 

Pttrlicuhtrs For the qunrtcr For lhe quttrter For the nine months From From 
ended endeu ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 

JI Oecem her 2020 JO Sept em bcr 2020 31 Decem her 2020 to to 
JI December 2020 31 Morch 2020 

Gain on redemption of preference shares 3 

Gain on redemption of mutmil fond units 2 

Miscellaneous income 0 0 0 

I 4 5 

36 Casi of work contrnct services 

Pnrtlculnr, For the q1111rter For lhe quarter For the nine months From From 

ended ended ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 
31 Decem her 2020 30 Scplc111 ber 2020 3 I December 2020 lo lo 

JI December 2020 JI Morch 2020 

Cost of wo1 k contract services 137 68 205 
137 68 205 

37 0 .11 or 111 1tcrl11b •old 
Pnrtlc11l11rs For the qunrter For th e quarter Fur Ill e 11flu• 111 01111! 11 From From 

ended endeu ended 18 November 2019 18 Novembcr2019 

31 December 2020 JO Septem her 2020 JI Decem her 2020 lo to 
JI Dcccm ber 2020 31 March 2020 

Casi of mate, ials sold 2 2 
2 2 
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38 Cost of ower urchBsed 

Par·ticuh1rs For the quarter For the quarter For the nine months From From 
ended ended ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 

31 Deccm her 2020 30 Seplem her 2020 31 Dec em her 2020 to lo 
31 Dec em her 2020 31 M nrch 2020 

Cost of ower urchased 137 59 196 
137 59 196 

39 JC ll /4C 

For the quarter For the quarter For the nine months From From 
ended ended ended 18 November 2019 18 Novem her 2019 

31 December 2020 30 Septem her 2020 31 December 2020 to to 
31 Decem her 2020 31 M nrch 2020 

Salaries and wages 43 50 
Contribution to provident and other funds 2 
G1 atuity expenses 0 

C'om~t.immta.d nb:s,:,m.:~~ (0) 
51 59 

40 Re nirs nnd maintenance 
Particulnrs For the quarter For the quarter For the nine months From From 

ended ended ended l8 No,•om her 20 tu 18 November 2019 
31 December 2020 30 Seplem ber 2020 31 December 2020 to to 

31 Decem her 2020 31 M nrch 2020 

Repairs and maintenance: 
- buildin8 51 124 175 
- plant and machinery 58 51 109 

- computers I 0 I 
- elecl1ical installalion 10 

I J~ 180 295 

41 Or.here Hl lUl'.1' 

f-•arllr11l1ir:t For the qnnrter For the qunrtcr For the nine months From From 
ended ended ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 

31 Decem her 2020 30 September 2020 31 Decem her 2020 to to 
31 December 2020 3l Mnrch 2020 

Rent 0 3 
Property tax 115 78 193 
Roynlly 0 
Elccl1 icily, wate1 and diesel charHes 69 63 132 
Travelling and conveyance 3 1 4 ll 
Rates and taxes 7 
Business SL1pport fees 13 9 22 
Brokerage and commission 48 28 76 
Piling fees and stamping charges 9 (1) 13 I 5 
Business promotion expenses/adve1 ti sing expense II 9 20 
Bank Charges 2 3 5 
Bad debts written off (3) 0 
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 18 9 27 
Provision for Doubtful Debts (expected credit 20 23 
loss alloVvDnce) 

Foreign exchange loss (net) (9) 9 (0) 
Dii ectors1 sitting fees 1 0 1 
Miscellaneous ex ens es 12 19 

2V •l~ ~ 2 20 23 
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42 Fhurn rc ro~u (11111 or rnpltnlbncluoi 
l1 1\ rtl r uh1rt1 For the quarter For 1h~• qunrter F'm· lh" uln ~ monlh., P'rnm From 

enc.Jed ended ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 
31 Decem her 1020 30 Septem her 2020 31 Decem her 2020 to to 

JI Decem her 2020 31 Morch 2020 

Interest expense 

- on borrowings from banks end financial institutions 555 530 1,085 
- on loans from body corporates 49 49 

- debentures 94 2 96 

• on lease liability 5 4 9 

- on others 8 
Accretion of interest on O 001¾ non-cumulative 4 4 
redeemable preference shares 

Unwinding of interest expenses on security deposits 56 43 99 

Other finance chari:1es I 8 9 

Less: Finance costs capitalised to investment prope1 ty ( 115) (144) (259) 
under construction 

599 SOI 1 100 

43 Ul1prr.rb11lou n1HI Ulll'!''tiu. · 1011 

P1utl('t1\J1rs Jlo r rh o qu11rter For the qunrtcr For the n1nc month, From J>'rom 
ended ended ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 

JI Deccm bcr 2020 JO Septcm bcr 2020 J 1 Decem her 2020 to to 
JI Decem her 2020 JI Morch 2020 

Dcprecialion / emo1tisetion of property, plant and IOI 43 144 

equipment 
Depreciation 'amortisation of investment property 710 453 1,163 
Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0 0 
Less: deprec1alion cost trwisferred to investment (0) (0) (0) 

properties unde1 construction 

811 496 1 307 

44 ·ru~ (\J ll111 Rtl 

l'uri ll01tf11~ For the quarter For the qunrtcr ltor the nlnr rn uu1h,, Fru in From 
ended ended ended 18 November 2019 18 November 2019 

JI Dccem her 2010 30 Scptem ber 2020 31 Dceem her 2020 to to 
JI Decem her 2020 31 M nrch 2010 

Current lax 456 268 724 
Defer red tax charge 221 158 379 

MAT credit entitlement (157) (68) (225) 

~20 358 878 
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45 Asset Acquisition 
The Mindspace REIT entered into share acquisition agreements with shareholders of 8 Asset SPVs (refer note I under 
accounting policies for list of these SPVs) for acquisition of shares of the Asset SPVs in exchange for the units of 
Mindspace REIT. The acquisition was effected on 30th July 2020 ("Acquisition Date") 

Requirements of Ind AS I 03 apply to a transaction in which assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a 
business. However, para B7A and B7B of Ind AS 103 allow an optional concentration test to perform simplified 
assessment of whether acquired set of' activities and assets is not a business. The consequence of the test is that if the 
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a bl1siness and no further assessment is 
needed 

REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of these SPVs. Acquired SP Vs are engaged 
in the business of real estate development and leasing. Major asset pool of these SPVs comprise of investment property 
and investment property under construction. Based on the assessment performed , management has determined that 
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment property and investment 
property under construction (including other assets which meet the definition of group of similar identifiable assets as 
per definition provided in para B7B of Ind AS I 03 such as investment property, property, plant and equipment attached 
to these investment properties which cannot be physically removed and used separately from these investment 
properties, without incurring significant cost, or significant diminution in utility or fair value to either asset). 

Accordingly, acquisition of these SPVs has been accounted as acquisition of grour of assets not constituting a business 
and requirements in Ind AS I 03 for business combination accounting has not been applied to this transaction The REIT 
has accounted for the transaction as follows: 

a. Identified asset or liability initially measured at an amount other than cost and applied applicable standards for initial 
measurement of these assets and I iabil itics 
b. Plant and Machinery recognised at fair value as determined by an independent valuer 

c. Deducted from the gross transaction price of the group acquired, amount recognised in respect of items listed in point 
(a) and (b) above 
d. Allocated the residual transaction price to the remaining identifiable assets (i.e. Land and Buildings which are then 
being classified as Investment Property and Investment property under construction) based on their relative fair values at 
the date of acquisition, arrived at by an independent valuer. 

The transaction has not resulted in recognition of goodwill or bargain gain in the books of the REIT, Non-controlling 
interests in these subsidiaries have a present ownership interest and is entitled to a proportionate share of net assets upon 
liquidation. These non-controlling interests have been accounted at their fair value on the date of acquisition of the 
SPVs. For this purpose, fair value has been determined in accordance with Ind AS 113. 

As consideration for the assets acquired, Mindspace REIT issued 556,654,582 units at unit price of Rs . 275 per unit 
totalling to Rs . 153,080 million. Mindspace REIT has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to the asset 
acquisition, amounting to Rs 23 million, resulting in the total transaction price of Rs. 153, I 03 million. The following 
tables summarize the total transaction price, gross transaction price and the allocation of the transaction price. 
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Amount 
Particulars (in million) 

Purchase consideration 153.080 
Acauisition costs 23 
Total transaction price 153,103 
Issue Price per unit 275 

Based on the above total transaction price and adjusted for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the gross transaction 
price is as follows: 

Amount 
Particulars (In million) 

Total Transaction Price 153,103 
Less : Other Assets 44,344 
Add: Other Liabilities 91 ,570 
Add : Non-Controllin11; lnterest 9.247 
Gross Transaction Price 209 576 

Based on the above total transaction price and adjusting for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the gross transaction 
price is allocated as follows on the basis of the allocation explained above : 

Amount 
Particulars (in million) 

Land - freehold and leasehold 
93,469 

as part of Investment property 

Building as part of Investment 
88,099 

I orooertv 
Investment property under 

16,680 
construction 
Property, plant and equipment 

11,327 
and other assets 
Total 209 575 

Depreciation on leasehold land, building, plant & machinery and other assets has been calculated on the above allocated 
amounts based on the balance useful lives of these assets as per the accounting policy. 

36 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Stotcmcnts 
N otcs to Accounts 
(All omounts ore in Rs. million unless otherwise stotcd) 

46 

2 

( :nnt111ii:en1 I nh lll t lc.• and C ,..nr, illl l commitments 
Pnrticulnrs As et As nt 

JI Dec cm her 2020 JI March 2020 

Contingent liabilities 
Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of 

- Income-Tax malters (Refer note I below) excluding inte1est 936 -
- Service-Tax matters (Refe r note 2 below) 332 -
- Customs duty matters (Refe1 note 3 below) 25 -
- Stamp duty 65 -

Capital commitments 
Estimated Rmount ofcontrncts 1emaining to be executed on capital account (net ofadwmces) and not 4,765 -

I Ill ovided for (Refer Note 4 below) 

Por the purpose of above disclos111e only those contingent liabilities that existed as of3 I December 2020 have been considered. 

Notes: 

a) Gigaplex-An appeal bas been filed fo1 A Y. 2010-11 befme CIT(A) against the penally 01der raising demand of Rs 3 million and the appeal is pending. The company has 
paid 20% (Rs.0.6 million) with a request to keep the demand in abeyance. As pe1• Income tax website, there is no demand oustanding. 

(b) KRIT • Contingent liability of Rs 933 million related to A Y 2012-13 to A Y 2018-19 for which company has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 
143(3) / 143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction unde, section SOJA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The company is hopeful of a 
favourable outcome for these Assessment Yea,s, In case of nnfavourable decisions in appeal fm A Y 2012-13 and A Y 20 I 8-19. the tax would be payable under no,mal tax and 
hence, MAT credit cunently available with the Company will no longer be available. As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, the Company would 1eqni1e to pay 
additional tax of Rs.326 million w.r.t. A Y 2019-20 and A Y 2020-2 I (These years e,e not under litigation) because during these years the Company has utilised the MAT credit 
availed during A Y 2012-13 to A Y 2018-19. 
For AY 2009-10 and AY 2010-11, Income tex cases on 801A disallowances are pending with Hon'ble HC ofTelangana based on appeal filed by the department against the 
!TAT - Hyderabad order, which we,•e in favou, of the Company. Future Cash outflow in 1espect of above, if any, is dete11ninable only on ,eceipt of judgements/ decisions 
pending with relevant authol'ities. 

SPVs As at As nt 
JI Dec em her 2020 JI March 2020 

MBPPL 92 
Sundcw 2 
lnlime 41 
KRIT 189 
Avacado 8 

332 
MB PPL : The SPV hos received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts 1eceived as reimbursement of elect, icily and allied charges nnd 
clcmnnd service tax there on of Rs. 92 million SPY has filled approp1i Rtc replies to the show cause and demnnd notices. 

SunUcw : Demand for Non Payment of service tnx 011 renting of fitouts end equipmenls Rs.2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penally on nccounl of wrong nvHilment of 
c1edit of service tax paid on input services Rs.a mn . SPY has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending. 

lntlmc : Demand for Non PRyment of service tnx on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.21 million and Demand for Service tex on elechicity and water and i11•egula1 
ovaihnent of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.20 million. SPY hos filed on appeals with CESTAT and matter is pcndiug, 

KRIT : Demnnd for Non Pnyment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs ,96 million and Demand for Service tax on electricity and wate1 1md iire~ular 
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.93 million. SPV hos filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending. 

Avncndo : The SPY hos received an o,de,· dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confinning the service tax demand of Rs. 7 million (excluding 
applicable interest and penally thereon) on ,enting of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to Ma,ch 201 I The Compony has filed an 
Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal . The matter is pending adjudication. 

For the subsequent period April 20 11 to September 2011, the Company hos received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of 
service tax of Rs. I million (excluding applicable interest and penally thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenonts. The Company has filed its 
detailed reply on 24 December 2012 , No further conespondence has been received in th is case. 
For both the above matters, the Company has filed applications in FolTll SYLDRS-1 under the Sobka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019. The Company hos 
received SYLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters. The Company has not accepted the demand nnd is evaluating the l\irthe1' course of action. 

~ Customs duty demand at the time ofdebonding of assets from the Software Technology Pa,ks of India scheme ( STPI) fo1 lntime Rs. 16 million and KRIT Rs. 9 million 

4 The SPV wise details ofcapitnl commibncnts are as follows: 

SPVs 

MBl'PI. 
Gigaplex 
Sundew 
KRC lnfrn 
1-loiizonview 
KRIT 
Avacado 
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As at As nt 
JI December 2020 JI March 2020 

480 
1,062 

549 
1,978 

208 
381 
106 
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Avncodo 
a) A Suit has been filed in the yea,· 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadi a (Plaintiff) against lvo1y Properties and Hotels Ptivate Limited (lvo,y) & Others which includes the Company as 

one of the Defendants inte,· alia in respect of the land and the 'Paradigm' Industrial Park building of the Company. The Plaintiff has p1 ayed against the Company and the said 
rvo1y rcstrnining them fiom canying out further conslmction or any other activity on the lam.I (on which the building Paradigm is constrncted), demolition nnd removal of the 
struclurcs on the said land, appointmcnl of a Court Rcccivc1' in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements cntc1ed into by the Company 
with lvo1y and the Plaintiff as voidable and lrnving been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up nnd cancelled, restrnining fiom alienating, encumbering 
01 parling wilh possession ofsh'uclrncs und 1eslrnining from dealing with, creating fresh leases/ licenses ur renewing lease/ license in 1espect of the said Pa1adigm building 
and fiom receiving or recoveiing any rent/ license fee/ compcnsalion in respecl oflhe said leases/ licenses, depositing all the rents in the Court, etc. The Comt has nol g1antcd 
any ad-inte1im 1clicf to the Plaintiff. The Company has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying that no intel'im relief be g1'antcd to the Plaintiff The 
C'ompm1y in its reply has also taken up a pleH that issue of limitation should be decided as a preliminary issue before any intc1 im relief could be granted to lhe Plaintiff. Pursuant 
to the Plaintiff's application for expedited heating of the case, the llon'blc High Court Bombay vide an Order dated 19/09/2013 and 20/09/2013 framed the issue of limitation 
under section 9 (A) of Code ol Civil Procedtue to be tried as to jm isdietion for the maintainabilily of the suit and directed the Plaintiff to file Rn affidavit in lieu of examination 
in chiefofthe fi rst witness on m before J7il0/2011. Pu1s1rnnt to the Plaintiffs SLP iu the Supreme Colllt challenging the Orders of the Hon'blc High Cou,1 doted 19/09/2013 
and 20/0Q/2013, the Hon'hle Supreme Co111t vidc its 01 der dated 08/10/2013 stayed the opei ation of the aforesaid Orders mid fu11he1 ' p1·oceecli11gs in the High Co111 t Suit No. 
414 of 2008, The1calle1 the llon'ble Sup,cme Cmn1 by ,ts Order elated 25 August 2015 has refcn-ed the said SLP to a tluee Judge Bench to be posted along with SL!' ( C) Na 
22438 of 2015 The SC by its Order dated 12.12.2018 disposed ofT the said SLP as infi-uctuons in view of deletion of Section 9A of the Civil P1occdu1e Code by the 
Maharashtia Act 61 of2018 on 29 . 10.2018. rn view of the subsequent amendment by lhe Stale ofMaharashhn to the sai<l provisions, pursuant to the Pctitionc1s applicati.on to 
,esto,e the St.P b) ea11c,:lli11g the Orde, dated I 2.12.2018, by Judgemc11t dated 4.10.20 l 9, three Judge Be11ch of the SC held that ,~s 9A CPC (Maha1asht1 a) question of 
limitation .,;annot he decided as a p1r.liminmy issue tts to jurisdiction. The SLP, npplicntion fo1 interim 1eliefund the High com1 Suit me pending for lhe final heruing , 

Base<l on an advice obt1-1ine<l from an independent legal counsel, the numitgement is confident tlrnt the Company will be able to suit11bly defend And the impnct, if any, on the Ind 
AS tiirnncia1 stalemc11ts c~n he dctc1111ined on disposed of the above Petition and nccordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of the company have been prcpmcd on n going 
concem basis. 
Flll1hcr, the PlaintifT, th1ough his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February, 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Ma11age1, the T111stcc, the Spo11sors, 
Avacaclo, M1. Ravi C. Raheja, Mr. Neel C Raheja, Mr. Cha11d111 L. Raheja, Ivory l'rope11ics a11d KRCPL, cxpressi11g his objection to the proposed OITe, a11d any actio11s 
conccining: the building Pmadigm located at Mindspc1cc Mahtd p1oject. The allegations and avcrmcnts nuulc by the Plaintiffhnvc bcl:n 1cspondcd and denied by the add1l:ssees, 
U11ou1Jh lhci1 ndvocHlcs & solicilors No fU1tlic1 coll'cspondencc hns hl:cll ,cceivcd 

h) Pu1sL1tt11t lo tl1e levy of service tn.x on 1enting of immovable p1opc1-lies given fo r commerciHI use, rctiospcctively with effect fiom I June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010, some 
of the lessees to whom the Company has let out ils ptcmiscs, have based on u \eg11l ildvice, clrnllengcd tile said levy and, inler-alia, its retrospective application and withheld 
pnyment of service tax to lhe Compnny, bnsed 011 cc1tni11 judicinl p1011ouncements and slfly ordc1s g1n11ted by E1ppl'Op1 iatc I ligh Com ts from time to time. Fmlhe1 in this 1egard 
the llon'ble Sup,•eme Cmn1 has passed an intcmn 01dcr dated 14th Octobc,. 201 I in Civil appeal nos. 8390, 8391-8393 of201 I and in compliance of which, such lessees have 
deposited with appropriate authority in 3 installments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have furnished surety for the 
balanr;c 50% of the tunounl of service tax and which amount hus ulso been deposited hy lhem with the aulhorilici.;, Further RS per Hon'blc Supreme Court's O1dc1 dated 5lh 
April 2018 in Civil Appeal No (s) 4487 12010, the mntte1 is defc,red until disposal of the issues pending befo1·e the nine,ii1dges Bench in Mineral A1ca Development Autho1ity 
r1nd othc1s. 
In view of the above und subject to lhc finnl ordc1s being passed by the Hon'ble Sup1"eme Court in the aforesaid Rppcals, the1c may be a contingent liability on the Comp,my in 
1 cspet:l of intcresl payable m1 at:cou11t of lhe delayed pnyment of service tnx, which nmount would be recovernblc fiom the rl:spective lessees by the Company 

Ci k.RC Infra 

7 
al 

bJ 

In 1especl oflhc Company's projccl 111 Villngc Kluuadi, Punc, fl special civil suil is filed The suit filed by Ashok Pbulchand Bhandaii against Baif1saheb LHxman Shivale and 29 
olhc.is in 1espccl of inte1 aliu an undivided shu1c adrncasming 44-15 Arcs out of the land bcmi11g S. No 65 Hissa No, 3 for declalfltion, specific perfo11nancc, 111junct1011 srnd 
lJthcr reliefs Nci1he1 Gem Dcvelopmenls P1•ivnle Limited nor KRC fnfrnstructme and P1ojects Private Limited is n pni1y to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have 
filed ;my mlcrvcntion application 'lhel' I! nre no 0Jde1s passed in the nrntter affecting the rnit lands 01 the development ther(!ofo1 restinining the trnnsfer 01 development of the 
aforesaid land in any mnrmcr whalsocvc1 

MRPPL 
Pursuant lo the de111crger and vesting of' the Comme,wne U11de11aking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd. (KRCPI .), in the Company MBPPL, the company MB PPL is the owner to the 
C'i.lcnt of 88, 16 % undivided right title and i11te1est in lhe land bcnring S, No 144, 145 Yeiawad,1, Pune which is compliscJ in the sairl UndertHking, "Shrimanl Chhatrapati 
Udayan Raje 8hosale (' the Pl;iintitf') hus filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No.133 of2009 in the Court ot Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune ogainst the e,·stwhile land Owne, 
Shri Mukund Bhavan Ttust (who had entrusted development tights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashn·n, claiming to be the owner of the said land. The Hon'ble Cou11 was 
pleased to ,eject the Applicr,tion for amendmrnt of plaint filed by the Plaintiff n11d allow the Third Party Applic~tions Oh 14.11.2016. The PlaintifT has filed two w1it petitio11s 
bcar•ing Nos. 4415/2017 nnd 4268/2017 111 the Bombay High Cou11 challenging the afo,esnid orders passed 011 14, 11.2016, The matter was t1a11sfe1Ted to another Co111t for 
adminislratlve 1eusons oncl adjourned 011 several occasions fo1 compliance of the order by the Plaintiff. On 5th Mai ch 2018 the Advocate fm lhe Plaintiff filed u pu1shis on 
1ecmd slaling lhat smce he does not have any instrnctions in the malte1 from the Plainti(f, the Vnkalahrnma is being: withdrnwn by him nnd the matter was posted on 20th Ma1ch 
2018 On 20th Mnrch 2018 the I-lon'blc Cou,t was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 siuce the Advocate for the Plnintiffhnd withd,awn the Yaknlanrnma and 
the Plnintiffwas not rep1ese11ted by any Advocate, Writ Petition Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon'ble Bombay High Court challenging the u,ders eluted 14th 
November 2016 by Shrimant Chal1apati Udnynnraje BhosRle against Siu i. Mukund Bhavnn Tmst and others came up for hearing 011 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate 
for the Petitioner unde, took to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No. 2 i.e. State of Mnharashn a and the 1-lun'ble 1-Jigh Co111 I was pleased to ndjour11 the same till 
16,01 ,2018, 26 02 2018, 22 06 2018 On 22.06.2018 the Advocate fot the Defendant No I liled a purshis stating that the Defendant No. I (a) expired. matte, was f1111hc1 
adjonmed till 24. 10. 18, 26. 1 I.I 8. 21 . 12 . 18, 01 .02.2019, 25,03.2019 nnd 15 .04.2019, 18.062019, 27.08 2019, 19 09 2019 On 19 09.2019 the matter has been stayed by the 
I lon'blc Cmn1 nnd furthe r posted 011 11 11.2019 for compliance of the order dated 14, 11 ,2016 by the Pia inti IT. The matter has been stayed unde, Sec IO of Code of Civil 
P1ocedure. On 07.04.2020 the matte, has bee11 frn1her adjourned till I 1.06 2020. On I 1.06.2020 the matte,· was fo11her adjourned till 11.09.2020 and the same has now been 
frn ther adjoumed till 04.12.2020, On 04, 12.20 the matte, is f111 ther adjourned till 24 02 ,21 , Both the Wt it Petitions were posted on 21.09. 18, 11 . I 0.18, 22. 10. l 8 and fu11he r 
posted on 10.06. 19 fo r Admission. The matters came on board on 20.06.2019, 14. 1 1.20 I 9, 15.0 I 2019 and 21 ,02,20 I 9 As per the CMIS Writ Petition No, 4415/20 I 7 was 
last posted on 27,03.2020 and is yet not listed , As per the CMJS Wtit Petition No.4268/2017 was last posted on 27.03.2020 and thereafter on 23 ,07 ,20 for Admission In the 
management's view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and lhe facts, no provision fm nny loss/ liability is presently required to be 11rnde 

Maharashna State Electricity Disnibution SPY Limited (MSEDCL) had sent a letter and subsequently, n show cause notice as to why the K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. (KRCPLJ 
(of which the Commerzone Uncle11aking is demcrged in the SPY MBPPL) shonld not be penalised for alleged laying of cable without obtaining ptopcr pennission fiom the 
Pune Municipal Coq1otation (PMC) and levied n penal.ly of Rs. 23 million on MBPPL. MB PPL has adequately responded to such allegations . Pune Municipal Coq101ation has 
issued to MSEDCL (with a copy to M BPPL and Panclrnshil Corpo, ate Pa, k Pvt Ltd. (Panchasil) stating that the penalty has been waived however, since there has been a 
violation of PMC apprnved iJ.enching policy the penalty of Rs ,5 million 1s lo be paid by Panchasil and MBPPL, MBPPL has received letter limn MSEDCL addressed to 
MBPPL and Panchashil to pay penalty chmges of Rs. 5 milllions and complete the balance cable laying wotk on priority by observing rules and regulations ofMSEDCL with 
due pemiission fiom PMC. MSEDCL sent a lette, to Panchashil and MBPPL providi11g the bifurcation of penalty of Rs. 5 milllions and requesting Panehnshil and MBPPL to 
make the payme11t at the earliest. MB PPL has sent n reply letter infonning MSEDCL that MBPPL is not liable to pay penalty of Rs. 3 million and in respect of the penalty of 
Rs 2 milllions MBPPI.. and Panchashil are both jointly liahle to pay the same. MBPPL has further requested MSEDCL to confinn on the same to enable MBPPL and 
Panchaslul to d1scuss/negot1ate on the same. It 1s learnt tlrnt Panchshli made the pr1yinc11t of Rs , 5 m1ll1on as penally charges to MSEDCL and i.:o 

. No prnv1s1on 1s cons1de1l·d 11eccss11ry at tins stage. 
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c) The Company is subject to other lcgnl p1occcdings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company's management does not reasonably expect 
that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded ,md dclcnnincd, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or financial conclilion 

d) MBPPL received a communication (alleged remiuder) fiom Pune Municipal Cor'Porntion (PMC) demanding an amount ofRs.157 million allegedly due from MBPPL based 011 
objections by intemal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has rrot been served with any 
document refen-ed to the said PMC letter. Srrbsequently MBPPL addressed orre more commurricatiorr slating that MBPPL would be irr a position to submit their reply uporr 
1eceipl of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/rccove10ble, MBPPL agrees lo make the said 
1rnyment and sought detailed cli:i.rification on the interest amount. 

8 lnlimc, Sundew and KRIT 
a) In accordance with the Scheme ofarrnngement which was approved by 1-ion'ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Pal'k II and Ill undcr1akings of 

K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (fonncrly known as K,Raheja IT Park (llyderabad) Piivate Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been demerged and vested in the 
Company with effect from the appointed date i.e. 0 I September 2006. 
The Company had acqui,ed the Janel al Madhapm, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme fiom KRIT. The said land is in lieu of the employment oppor1unitics to be 
gene,ated by KRIT arrd othelS. 
The liabilily, if any, 11iising due lo the obligation to c1eate the job oppo11unities for the cnti1e largct' l1md of which the above p1ope11y is R pa11, continues to be 1etaincd by KRIT 
as at 3 I Decembe1 2020. 
Dtning the year ended 31 March 2016, Tclangana State lndusllial lnfiaslluehne Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and also 
confirmed to tire bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount fiom the barrk under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is l'elieved of its obligation. Hence, 110 liability is 
recognised towards the pr ice of the plot of land. 

b) An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andlua Pradesh Industrial lnfrastrncture CorJJOration Limited ("APIIC") in respect of APIIC's claims of losses due to any 
difference irr values pertaining to sale transactions of the project under1akcn by KRIT. Losses incun-ed by the Government/fSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be paid in fnll 
by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has fumished lo the JV Company in writing agreeing and admilling liability to make srrch payment to Govemment/fSIIC. 
The shar eholding pattern of the Governrnent/fSIIC in the JV Company and the Compauy will not change as a result of conversion fiom Private to Public, the Government/ 
TSIIC equity of 11 % will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and fur1her in future, Government/ TSIIC will not be asked lo infuse fur1her cash 10 
nrnintain its 11 % stake. 

9 Gigaplcx 
Regula r Civil Snit lrnd been filed befo,e the I Ion. Civil Judge (J .D) Vashi al Central Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintifl''J who is claiming rights in existing 
school Sllllclurc, claiming its area as 500 squAre meters and its existence since more thnn 30 yerus, seeking on injunction not to dispossess him, The Company has filed ils 1eply 
opposing the Plaintiff's 1,rayets. Aller hearing the patties, the Hon'ble Judge nt the Vashi Cou,1 had rejected tl,c Plaintiff's Injunction Application by Order dated 20 08 18 
(Order). Therealter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane Disllicl Cam i. The PlaintilTs Appeal filed in Thnne District Court is still pending, it's next dntc is on 15 ,01 21 In 
mnnHgcmcnt view, the cslimntc of liability ai1ising out of thl! smnc is I emote, no provision lrns been tRken. 

JO KIUT 

A Writ petition has beeu filed against the Company in the High Cami of Judicature of Andhra r,adesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land admeaslll'ing 4,500 
sqmue yfuds, ea111rn1ked as plol 18 Pu1sunnt to it, the Court IUts 1rnsscd Rll 01der for 110 constrnction activity upon the uinngulnr piece of 2 ncrcs 40 cents of land callic1 
iclcntilied at the Lime of allotment as 'Comnron Facility Centre' irr the soflware layout until further orders of the Court. IALA and APIIC have filed amdavits opposing the writ 
petition, confirming the al101me111 and rights ofKRIT irr the Suit Land, nnd for vacoting the Stay O,der. The matter is pending before the Comt, Greater Hyderabad Municipal 
Corporation ("GIIMC") hacl filed an application in the Court for clarificotion tlral the Stay Order docs not preclude GI-IMC fiom acquil'ing a portion of 0.14 acres 
(app1oxirnalely 567 square metc,s) for road widening. Subsequently, GHMC has acquired the poition of land and constnrctecl the road. The matter· is pending for disposal by 
the lligh Courl. Bnsed on the facts of the case, the mnnagcmcnt does riot expect any liability and is of the opinion that no p1ovision needs to be mnde. 

11 llorizonvicw 
W,S Industries (India) Limited ("WSIIL") has filed a writ petition before the Mndrns High Court against the District Revenue omcer, Thinrvalhrr ("DRO") and P, Jeynpal S/o 
R. Perumalsamy ("Jeyapal"J seeking directions for quashing• notice dated Mey 25, 2017 issued by the DRO and Additional District Judge ("Notice"). The Notice was issued 
by the DRO cum Additional Disll ict Judge 011 a complaint presented by Jeyapal alleging that lands were handed over to WSIIL 011 certain conditions, and instead of rrsing such 
lands for common purpose, WSIIL has been using the lands for commercinl purpose WSIIL is the erstwhile owner of the land, a portion of which was subsequently sold and 
liansferred by WSIIL lo certain entities. ~101 izouview has been granted development rights over such land. The Madras High Court, by its order dated June 5, 20 I 7, has 
grnnted interim stay. The matte, is pending before the Madras High Court. Neither RPIL Signalling Systems Limited (the present owner of the land at Ponu being developed by 
Hmizonvicw P1opcrties Private Limiled) 1101 Ho1izonvicw P1opertics Private Limited is a pa1ty to the flfmementioned suit. 

47 A,scssrnent of possible Im poet rcsultiug from Covld-19 
The Mindspace Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the operations of the Mindspace Group and canying 
amounts of property, plant and equipment, Inveshnent Property, Inventories, receivables find other assets . The MindspRce G1oup, as at the date of approval of these financial 
statements, has used internal and external sou1ces ofirrfonnation to detennine the expected future impact ofCOVID-19 pandemic on the perfom1ance of the Mindspace Group. 
The Mindspace G1oup based on cuncnt estimates expects the carrying amount of the assets to be l'ecovered . However, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic nnd its 
response by various government authm·itics the Management will continue to monitor developments to identify significRnt impacts, if any, on the Mindspacc Group's 
ope1atio11s , 

48 Manneement Fee, 
Pro1>ertv Me11n2cment Fee 
Pmsuant to the Investment Managernc:nt Ag1ecmcnt dated 29 June 2020 flS amended, the Manage1 is entitled to fces@3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout) per annum of the 
relevont prope11y in 1cspcct to operations, maintenancc,administration m1d management of the SPVs, as applicable. The fees has been detcnnincd lo meet the ongoing costs of 
the lnvcshnent Manage1 to undertake the services provided to tlu: SPVs. 
P,opc11y Management foes for the quar1er· and nine months ended 31 December 2020 amounts to Rs 90 million and Rs 148 million (31 March 2020: Rs Nil), There are 110 
changes duiing the pe1 iod in the methodolob'Y fo1 computation of fees paid to the Manager. 
Support Services Fee 
Pursuant to the Inveshncnt Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Mimager is entitled to fees@ 0.5% of the total 1c11t ( lease end fitout) per mmum of 
the relevant prope11y in respect to ope1ations, maintcn1rnce,administiation and management of the SPVs, as ttpplicable. The fees has been dete1mi11ed to meet the ongoing costs 
of the Investment M1rnagcr to u11de11ake the services p1ovided to the SPVs. 
Suppor1 Management fees for the quarter and nine months crrded 31 December 2020 amounts to Rs 15 million and Rs 25 million (31 March 2020: Rs Nil) There are no 
changes during the pciiod in the mcthodolob'Y for computHtion of fees paid to the Manager. 
REIT Management Fees 
Pur snant to the Investment Management Agreement dnted 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 0,5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash rlows which 
shall be payable either in cash 01· in Units or a combination of both, ut the discretion of the Investment Manager The fees has been detennined for unde1taki11g management of 
the REIT nnd its invcshncnts. The REIT Management fees accrned for the quarter and nine months ended JI December 2020 nre Rs 17 million. There are no changes during 
the peiiod in the methodology fo1 co111putttlion of fees pnid to the lnvcshncnl Mannger. 

39 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Account, 
(All amounts ere in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

49 Details of utilisation of proceed, of IPO ere es follows: 

Particulars 

r 1ull 11i or full p1e-payme11t or scheduled 1epayme11t of co11n[11 dohl 
lho1l11!cs of the Asset SPVs availed from banks/financial in, li tu1io111, 
(111cl11dlnl,I any accrued interest and any applicable penalties/ p1emiu111) 

Purchase of Non Conve11ible Redeemable Preference Shares ofMBPPL 
Geneial Corporate Purposes and REIT Issue Expenses 
T utul 

Proposed 
utilisation 

9,000 
334 
666 

10,000 

Actual utilisation Unutilised 
upto amount as at 

31 December 2020 31 December 2020 

9 ,300 Refer Note 
334 . 
366 Refer Note 

I0,000 -
Note: Rs. 100 111 I Wun Is uied in uuoss 101' r, rovidlug lo~n• to AAact SP Vs r<11' the U p rp ose ofrepayment of debt facilities of the SPVs. 

50 I) I II f T C II M (1 1111 1~11( (11 1 O l ll'UCl'l'C ~ 0 c enturcs arc ns o ows: fD b i II 
Particulars Proposed Actual utilisation Unutilised 

utilisation upto amount ns at 
31 December 2020 31 Decentber 2020 

l' 1tiv itll 11g lcum• 111 11, ~ SPVg for rnccl iuu thofr cu11s1111u1lo11 rolntrd 
1J pouse,;, ,,,11rki 11ll c11plml or ,Ml.lncltiJ i.:m1iurnlc t1c:c1ui 11.m1c11h1, 1u1rny1111.mt 
or fi11n 11oiul i11dah 111c~s, 1JC 11 c1·nl en11mm10 pu11,osos 111ch11li11g 1•ny111C1a ol 
Ices ~ml ux1,cn~~s n COlll1Ci:i!k lll wi1h the l 6SUQ1 ncqurnlti<.m ol 
\U,111111um;1ol pmpo11rl'S ur •uch olhcr JIUqioses ns Nllpulntcd in 1ho 
1rn11sno1100 doc:mmc.nt~. 7 000 6 996 •I 

51 Rnrnings Per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amounts a, e calculated by dividing the profit for the period ath·ibutable lo Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPU Amounts aie calculated by dividing the profit alliibutable to Mindspace REIT by the weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the peiiod. The Units of the Trnst we,e allotted to Sponso1 Group and Blackslone entities on 30 July 
2020 and to the applicants of inti al public offer on 4 August 2020 , 

Particulars For the quarter For the <1uartcr For the nine months From 
ended ended ended 18 November 2019 

31 December, 2020 30 September, 2020 31 December, 2020 to 
31 December 2020 

P1011t/ (loss) aflel'tax fo1-calc11lating basic 
and diluted EPU a111ibutable to Mindspace 
REIT 1,306 626 1,927 (32) 

Weighted average number of units 593 404 334 -
(no. in million) 

Earnings Per Unit 
• Basic (Rupees/unit) 2.20 I 55 3,06 Not Applicable 
- Diluted /Rupees/unit) 2.20 1.55 3 06 Not Applic~ble 
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From 
18 November 2019 

to 
31 March 2020 

(49) 

Not Applicable 
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52 Net Operating Income (NOi) 
The Mindspace REIT entered into share purchase agreement with Sponsor group and Blackstone entities of Asset SPVs for acquisition of the 
shares of the SPVs held by such shareholders in exchange for the units of Mind space REIT (refer note 45), Acquisition of these SP Vs has been 
accounted as acquisition of group of assets based on the concertation test permitted as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2020 and accordingly, requirements in Ind AS 103 for business combination accounting are not applicable to this 
transaction, 

The revenue and expenses pertaining to these SPVs have been consolidated from I August 2020 and therefore these condensed consolidated 
financial statements include results of these SPVs from 1 August 2020 to 31 December 2020 only. As the transaction is being accounted as asset 
acquisition and not a business combination, the pro forma information is not required to be disclosed per Indian Accounting Standards 
applicable to the transaction. However, considering these proforma information to be relevant to the investors, the Governing Board has decided 
to provide following additional 'pro-fonna' infonnation to represent an approximate measure of the performance of the Mindspace REIT group 
for the quarter ended 30 June 2020 and 30 September 2020, quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2020 and year ended 31 March 2020, 
as if the acquisition had occurred on I April 2019 following the analogy from disclosures required in Ind AS 103 for 'Business Combinations' . 

The following pro forma financial information has been prepared by combining the historical results of all the SP Vs for the respective periods 
alter making adjustment for intra group transactions and unrealised profits, if any. The pro forma financial infonnation is presented solely for 
informational purposes and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition ofSPVs had taken place 
on 1 April 2019 or of results that may occur in the future. 

Qun rter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months ended Year ended 

Particulars 
30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 December 2020 31 December 2020 31 Mnrch 2020 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

Proforma Revenue from 
3,959 4,079 4,301 12,339 17,660 

operations 
Proforma direct 

741 713 723 2,177 5,403 
OIJerati!}g ~ uses • 

Net operating Income 3,218 3,366 3,578 10,162 12,257 

• direct operating expenses are repairs and maintenance - buildings, repairs and maintenance plant and machinery, repairs and maintenance 
electrical installation , property tax, insurance expense, cost of material sold, cost of power purchased and power operation & maintenance 
expenses) 
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53 Financial instruments 
A The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below: 

Financial assets 

Fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') 
Investments - non-current 

Fair value through profit nnd loss ('FVTPL') 
Investment in mutual funds - current investments 

Amortised cost 
Investments - non-current 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Other financial assets 

Totnl nssets 

1/inancial liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term debt) 
Security deposits 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Total liabilities 

As at 
3 I December 2020 

0 

18 
242 

3,637 
210 

2,478 

6 585 

36,380 
7,446 

844 
2 794 

47,464 

As at 
31 March 2020 

0 

0 

49 
49 

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approxiniates lo their fair value 

II. Measurement of fair values 
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instrumc11ts that are: 
a) recognised and measured at fair value 
b) measured at amori 1sed cost and !'or which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. 
To p1ovide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into 
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below: 

Fair value hierarchy 
• Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity cnn access at the measurement 
date: 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly; and 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The following table presents the fair value mcasuremr.nt hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 
11 December 2020. 

Financial instruments 

Quantitative ,foclosures fair value measurement hierarchy fur assets as at JI December 2020: 

Pa rticu la rs Date ofvnluation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial assets measured at fair value: 

FVTOCI financial investments: 0 0 

c) Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 
There were no transfers between Level I, Level 2 or Level 3 during the the period 

d) Determination of fair values 
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. 
When applicable, further i;iformution about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or 
liability. 
i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date. 
ii) The fai1 values of other current financial assets a~d financial liabilities are c0nsidcred to be equivalent t0 their carrying values. 

42 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(Ali amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

54 Non-controlling i111 cru 1 

Name of the entity 

Parent 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

Subsidiaries 
Intime Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Sundew t•roporl1cs Limited 
CnnsolldHll•d uct llShrt~/Tot,11 cnm preh u~i"c incom 

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 

Net assets Share in total comprehensive income 

As a % of Amount As a % of consolidated Amount 
consolidated total comprehensive 

net assets income 

94.7% 164,716 92.7% 1,927 

I.I¾ 1,904 2.0% 41 
i.8% 3,146 2.4% 49 
2.4% 4,163 J .(J¾ (,3 

IOO'V• 173,930 100 % 2,080 
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54 Non-controlling interest (continued) 

The following table summarises the financial information relating to subsidiaries which 
have material Non-controlling interest. 

(i) Intime Properties Limited 
Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI 
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 

Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable to Non-controlling Interest 
Total comprehensive income for the period 

Cash flows from/ (used In) : 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

(ii: K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI 
Carrying amount of Non-controlling Interests 

Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable to Non-controlling interest 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Cash flows from: 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase In cash and cuh equivalents 

As at 
31 December 2020 

As at 

14,698 
3,412 
(118) 
(684) 

17,308 
11.0% 
1,904 

31 December 2020 

As at 

369 

41 

20 
23 

(52) 
(9) 

31 December 2020 

As at 

23,322 
6,325 
(259) 
(780) 

28,608 
11.0% 
3,146 

31 December 2020 

44 

445 

49 

40 
35 

(68) 
7 
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(iii Sundew Properties Limited 
Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI 
Carrying amount or Non-controlling interests 

Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable to Non-controlling interest 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Cash flows from/ (used In) : 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase in cnsh and cash equivalents 

Total carrying amount or NCI 

As at 
J 1 December 2020 

As Rt 

47,416 
1,447 

(8 ,192) 
(2,823) 
37,848 
11.0% 
4,163 

31 December 2020 

45 

572 

63 

I 15 
612 

(732) 
(5) 

9,213 
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55 Related Part:' IJisclosures 

A. Parties to Mindspace REIT as nt 31 December, 2020 (Refer Note I) 

SI. No. Particulars 
I Trustee 

Sponsors 

2 

3 

Manager 
4 

_L'S11011..io r~ Groun 
(i 

--;;-
-r _c,__ 

9 

-
IO 

II 

12 

-

13 

-

14 

15 

Nnme of Entities 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Anbee Constructions LLP 

Cape Trading LLP 

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

M1. Ravi C. Raheia 
Mr Neel C. Raheia 
Mes. Jvoli C Raheia 
Capstan Trading LLP 

Casa Maria Propc11ies LLP 

Raglrnkool Estate Developemenl LLP 

Palm Sheller Estate Development LLP 

K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd , 

Ivory Property Trust 

Genext Hardwa,e & Parks Pvt. Lid. 

Promoters/Partners• 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
.,__ r"h'; C ll .1,.;. 

Mr . Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L.Raheja 
'"•s , .. h,: r D.r,.;. 

Mr·. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr . Neel C. Raheja 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandrn L. Raheja 
., __ lynli (: llol,.,a 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 

IM,·, •.,.,; (' R oheia 
M1. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr Chandrn L. Raheja 
1.... . . . , r 11.r,.;. 

Mr. Ravi C RaheJa 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
M1. Chandcu L. Raheja 
·.,'" , .. h,, r o.h.,. 
Mr Chandru L. Raheja foi111ly with 
Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mr~ Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with 
Mc . Chandru L. Raheja 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr . Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs. Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

i\nbce Constructions LLP 
lca11c Trading LLP 
Copstn11 Trading LLI' 
Cnsn Maria Pr oper1ies LLP 
Raglrnkool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Sheller Estate Development LLP 
Mr, Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Ramesh M. Valecha 

Chandru L. Raheja 
Jyori C. Raheja 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Lid 
Rnvi C. Raheja 
N~el C. Raheja 
(nil are trustees) 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L, Raheja Jointly wilh 
Mrs. Jyoli C. Raheja 

Directors 

Ravi C Raheja 
Neel C. Raheja 
Ramesh Valecha 
Vined Rohil'a 

Ravi C. Rahe_1a 
Neel C. Raheja 
Ramesh Valecha 

Mr. Neel C. RahcJa Jointly wilh 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

~ Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. /2 \:.~ Me41 
/.>,.'\'--~· <f '\ Raheja, behalf of Ivory Property Trust /2. 1/' l' ,t, 

L-L-~./..;~,L.:_.::::::.._:!-U~ '-~ L------------L-----------J_----J,0::-..-~/1/----:!at llng as the ~ 

I 46 ~ j Mlnd~»:t1,
1
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55 Related Party Disclosures 

A. Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 December, 2020 (Refer Note 1) 

SI.No. P~rtk ulnrs Name of Entities 
Governing Board and Key Go"erniny llo:1rcl 
Managerial Personnel of the Mr. Deepak Ghaisas 
Manager (K Raheja Corp Ms Manisha Girotra 
Investment Managers LLP) Mr. Bobby Parikh 

Mr. Alan Miyasaki 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 

16 Mr. Neel C. Raheja 

Kc~ M11111111,~rlul l'1•rso1111 cl 
Mr. Vinod Rohira 
Ms. Preeti Chheda 

Gntitick controlled/jointly Brookfields Agro & Development Private 
contruilc{\ by members of Limited 
Govcr11111g Board. Cavalcade Properties Private Limited 

Grange Hotels And Properties Private 
Limited 
Immense Properties Private Limited 

18 Novel Properties P, ivate Limited 
Pact Real Estate Private Limited 
Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private 
Limited 
Sustain Properties Private Limited 
Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited 
Feat Properties Private Limited 
Carin Properties Private Limited 
Asterope Properties P,ivate Limited 
Content Properties Private Limited 
Gran dwell Properties And Leasing P, ivate 
Limited 
Sundew Real Estate Private Limited 
Mis Bobby Parikh and Associates 

• 011ly when acting collectively 

47 

Promoter~/Partners • Directors 
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55 Related party disclosures 

B. Related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the period 

Particulars 

Project Management Fees 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Investment Management Fees 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Trustee fee expenses 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Legal & professional fees 
Mis Bobby Parikh and Associates 

Interest income 
Ivory Property Trust 

Rent expense 
Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 

Royalty Charges 
Anbee Conslructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Private Limited 
K. Raheja Private Limited 
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 

Sitting Fees 
Neel C Raheja 
Ravi C Raheja 
Vinod N. Rohira 
Preeti Chheda 

Loan repaid 
Ivory Property Trust 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP• 

Quarter ended For nine months 
ended 

31 December 2020 30 September 2020 31 December 2020 

104 

17 

0 

0 
0 
0 

13 

68 

6 

19 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3150 

48 

173 

17 

2 

6 

19 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3150 

61 

From 
18 November 2019 

to 
31 December 2020 

25 

From 
18 November 2019 

to 
31 March 2020 

I 
I 
I 
I 
2 

41 

•includes fees paid to Mis Bobby Parikh & Associates amounting to Rs. 0.48 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2020 and nine months ended 31 December 2020 
and Rs l million for the period ended 31 March 2020. 
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5S Related party disclosures 

B. Related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the period 

Particulars Quarter ended For nine months 
ended 

31 December 2020 30 September 2020 31 December 2020 

Payment to Sponsor Group com~anies in 
relation to Offer for Sale 

Chandru L Raheja 10 10 
Jyoti C Raheja 1,139 1,139 
RaYI C Raheja 1,179 1,179 
Neel C Raheja 1,179 1,179 
Gencxt Hardware & Parks Private Limited 957 957 
lnorbit Malls (India) PJivate Limited 1,505 1,505 
Ivory Properties And Hotels Private Lunited 3,385 3,385 
Ivory Property Trust I 0,352 10,352 
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 4,301 4,301 
K. RaheJa Private Limited 2,851 2,851 

Initial receipt from Co-sponsor - received 
Anbee Constrnctions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 

Issue of Unit capital 
Anbee Constmctions LLP 9,736 9,736 
Cape Trnding LLP 9,736 9,736 
Capstan Trading LLP 11,301 11,301 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 11,301 11,301 
Chandru L. Raheja 8,974 8,974 
Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 6,294 6,294 
lvo1y P1operty Trust 2,410 2,410 
Jyoti C Raheja 2,745 2,745 
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 10,064 10,064 
Neel C. Raheja 4,637 4,637 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 11 ,301 11 ,301 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 9,958 9,958 
Ravi C Raheja 4,637 4,637 

49 

From 
18 November 2019 

to 
31 Decem her 2020 

0 
0 

From 
18 November 2019 

to 
31 March 2020 

0 
0 
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55 Related party disclosures 

C, Balances 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables 
Carin Properties Private Limited 

Other Receivable 
Vinod N Rohira 

Trade Payables 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates 

Sitting Fees Paya hie 
Neel C.Raheja 
Ravi C.Raheja 
Vinod N Rohira· 
Preeti Chheda 

Other Financial Liabilites 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Security Deposit 
K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. 

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus 
Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 

56 "O" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million 

As on 

31 December 2020 

so 

0 

0 

38 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

24 

2 

0 
0 

Ason 

31 March 2020 

49 

0 
0 




